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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and
other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

The past financial year has been very challenging and difficult. The telecommunication industry has been going through
significant structural changes and couple with the impact of the rapid advancement of technologies changed the overall
industry landscape. Our traditional wireless value-added service was also adversely affected by the unstable market policies
from telecommunication operators in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Apart from strengthening our existing co-operation with China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile”) through the wireless music
search and MiCu Ringtone projects, the Group will continue to seek growth opportunities both within our existing business
and in new business areas where we can leverage our competitive advantages to broaden and improve our profitability in
the future.

With the recent deployment of 4G technology, the telecommunication operators believe that the future key revenue driver
is dataflow. We are working on a number of solutions aiming to help telecommunication operators to effectively manage its
customers vast dataflow.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere appreciation of the continuing supports
of our shareholders and business partners and also of the contribution and dedication of our management and dedicated
staff .

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hog Kong
22 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWmR DM

Financial Review

Revenue

During the year, revenue from the wireless value-added service
("WVAS") for music again became the Group’s main source of
income. The income from the Group’s technical supporting services
to a major telecommunication operator in the PRC, however, showed
a downward trend due to the demanding terms and policies imposed
by the telecommunication operator. As reported in previous reports
and announcements, the Group has tied up its existing funding to
high-quality services in these contracts and therefore resulted in
limited resources available to other business areas that caused a
further drop in revenue from business partners of WVAS.

As a result, the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2015
amounted to approximately HK$9.8 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 59.5% from approximately HK$24.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Cost of sales and gross profit margin

As a result of decline in revenue, cost of sales of the Group
decreased from approximately HK$11.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2014 to approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31
March 2015, representing a decrease of approximately 73.1%. As the
Group has decreased in revenue generated from business partners
of WVAS which has a lower gross profit margin, the overall gross
profit margin increased from approximately 50.8% to 67.1% in
current year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1.8 million, which was decreased by approximately HK$0.2
million as compared with that of 2014 (2014: HK$2.0 million). The
decrease mainly attributable to the decreases in fair value gain on an
investment property and interest income, which has been offset by
the increase in gain from disposal of non-current assets.

Selling expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of further streamline
of the selling department and tight control over promotional
activities, the Group's selling expenses experienced a decrease from
approximately HK$11.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 to
approximately HK$3.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2015,
representing a drop of approximately 73.7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE s Tam Mo

Financial RevieWw (continued)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mastered a decrease of approximately
HK$8.7 million from approximately HK$40.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2014 to approximately HK$31.4 million for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The decrease in such expenses was due to
the stringent control on the already tight budget. Also there were
non-recurring expenses over share options granted in the third
quarter of the year ended 31 March 2014 which resulted in an one-
off expense of approximately HK$2.0 million last year and there was
a decrease in doubtful debts provision as compared with last year.

Other expenses

Other expenses, which mainly represented expenses for service and
staff development and other non-operating expenses, decreased
from approximately HK$4.2 million in 2014 to approximately HK$2.2
million in 2015 which was mainly due to the decrease in non-
operating staff costs during the year and the decrease in impairment
on other receivables.

Result for the year

The Group’s loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
dropped to approximately HK$29.7 million in current year,
representing a decrease in loss of approximately HK$11.9 million
from that in 2014 (2014: HK$41.6 million).

Total equity

Due to the loss in the periods and the use up of internal resources as
described above, as at 31 March 2015, the Group has a deficit in
assets amounted to approximately HK$10.9 million (2014: total equity
of approximately HK$10.8 million) and net current liabilities amount
to approximately HK$18.1 million (2014: net current assets of
approximately HK$0.6 million).

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial management policy.
In order to achieve better cost control and minimise the cost of
funds, the Group's treasury activities are centralised and cash is
generally placed in deposits with banks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE s tam Mo

Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (continued)

As at 31 March 2015, total cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million (2014: HK$12.6 million).
The pledged bank deposit of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$0.3 million as at 31 March 2014 was released in current year.
During the year, the Group has a new borrowing of approximately
HK$1.1 million from a third party which remained outstanding as at
31 March 2015 (2014 nil). This borrowing is pledged by a property of
the Group located in the PRC.

During the year under review, the Group financed its operations by
revenue generated from its operations, the new pledged borrowing
and new shares issued pursuant to a placing agreement dated 23
January 2015 and the exercises of share options. Its cash resources
were used up to finance the operations of the Group. There was no
seasonality as to the Group’s borrowing requirements and no
committed borrowing facilities.

Treasury policies and foreign currency exchange
exposure

As most of the Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was minimal and
there was no significant adverse effect on normal operations.

Cash is generally deposited at banks in the PRC and Hong Kong and
denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar. As at 31
March 2015, no related hedges were made by the Group (2014: nil).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(2014 nil).

Significant investments, acquisitions or disposals

There were no significant investments or material acquisitions or
disposals by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2015
(2014 nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE s Tam Mo

Financial RevieWw (continued)

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 28 March 2000.
During the year under review, a total of 24,750,000 share options
were exercised to subscribe for shares of the Company.

Further, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 23 January 2015,
15,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
were issued under the general mandate at the price of HK$0.27 per
share for cash to a placing agent (the “Placing”).

The total of 15,000,000 new shares issued under the Placing
represents approximately 1.92% of the then Company’s issued share
capital before the Placing (781,105,000 ordinary shares) and
approximately 1.88% of its enlarged issued share capital of the
Company after the Placing (796,105,000 ordinary shares). The net
proceed from the Placing was approximately HK$3.9 million. The
Group will use such net proceeds mainly for general working capital
of the Group. The Placing was completed on 30 January 2015.

Events after the reporting period

On 1 April 2015, Dynamic Peak Limited (the “Offeror”), and Century
Technology Holding (PTC) Limited, Bakersfield Global (PTC)
Corporation and Greenford Company (PTC) Limited (the “Vendors”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement”).
Pursuant to which, the Offeror conditionally agreed to purchase and
the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell the aggregate of 294,276,619
shares of the Company (the “Sale Shares"”), for a total consideration
of HK$79,454,687.13 (representing HK$0.27 per Sale Share). The
completion of the S&P Agreement took place on 29 April 2015. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 April
2015.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a total of 59 employees (2014:
75). Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2015 decreased to
approximately HK$17.9 million (2014: HK$28.7 million) mainly due to
decrease in headcount.

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees and Directors and the market
condition. In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses,
employee benefits included medical schemes, pension contributions,
share option schemes and staff training.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE s tam Mo

Business Review and Outlook

During the financial year 2015, tight policies were continued for
domestic telecommunication industry. Telecommunication operators
generally have tight control on the co-marketing and supporting
services costs. During the year, the WVAS project operated with
China Mobile Limited faced the same challenges.

China's mobile internet population is increasing on year-to-year basis
with the raising use of smartphones and the improvement of
networking infrastructure. As a result of the technology changes, the
Group is therefore diversifying to the mobile internet market. We will
continue to develop applications which support internet and
mainstream mobile phone platforms, such as the Mi-Gu Ringtone
(already launched) and games for mobile phone.

Looking ahead, there are still great challenges for the Group. While
carrying out initiatives already under way in its current strategic
plans, the Group will also critically review the future opportunities in
its traditional businesses with a target to reallocate the Group's
resources for a more fruitful manner. In the coming future, the Group
will focus its work on strengthen its marketing and channel efforts,
increasing user base and improving the quality of its products.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, aged 45, is the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director, in charge of the overall corporate strategies and
business development of the Group. He is also the compliance
officer, an authorised representative, a member of the remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and the Chairman of the
nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the Company.
Mr. Yip is a graduate of Program for Management Development from
Harvard University and holds a bachelor degree in electrical
engineering from the University Wisconsin-Madison in the United
States of America (“USA"). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yip worked
in a software-consulting firm as a consultant in the USA. He has been
with the Group since October 1996. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng
Mun, the Group’s former executive Director and a brother of Mr. Yip
Heon Ping, an existing executive Director and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the
former Chairman of the Group.

M. Yip Heon Ping, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director
and an authorised representative of the Company in August 2009. He
is also a founder of the Group, an executive Director from March
2000 to June 2007 and the general manager of the Group from
December 1992 to March 2000, in charge of the Group's overall
management function. Mr. Yip holds a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from lowa State University in the USA. Prior to joining the
Group in 1992, Mr. Yip worked for Hewlett Packard Asia Limited for 10
years. Mr. Yip is a son of Mr. Yip Seng Mun, the Group's former
executive Director and a brother of Mr. Yip Heon Keung, the Group's
existing Chairman and Mr. Yip Heon Wai, the former Chairman of the
Group.

Mr. Han Jun, aged 44, has been redesignated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director in February 2015. Mr. Han graduated
from the College of Computer Science of Beijing University of
Technology, majoring in computer software. Since 2004, Mr. Han has
held the position of General Manager of Beijing Flash Unite Network
Technology Co., Ltd, which is a leading mobile phone content and
service provider in the mainland China. Prior to that, Mr. Han worked
in TOM.COM LIMITED as a vice-president from 2000 to 2004,
responsible for the company website and wireless business. Before
2000, Mr. Han worked in China Potevio Co., Ltd, responsible for the
development of software for operation service of telecommunication
main network. Mr. Han has very extensive experience in management
and operation of telecommunication value-added business.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENRNEERE

Non-executive Director

Ms. Li Luyi, aged 35, has been redesignated from an executive
Director to a non-executive Director in February 2015. Ms. Li holds a
bachelor’'s degree in Investment Economics from Shanghai Tongji
University in Shanghai. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li served as the
vice-president of Kongzhong Corporation, a company listed on
NASDAQ Global Select Market (NASDAQ: KONG) and the vice general
manager of the wireless industry department of TOM Online Inc. Ms.
Li has very extensive experience in the marketing and business
development of wireless value added services especially in the
music-related services, and also has accumulated years of invaluable
experience in the operation and management of the telecommunications
industry in the PRC.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam Chun Wan, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in August 2010. He is also the Chairman of
the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Tam is a qualified accountant and holds a
diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Tam is currently a managing partner of a certified public
accountants firm in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom as well as a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Tam has very extensive experience in providing auditing,
taxation and management consultancy services.
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Directors and Senior Management
EENRNEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2005. She is also a
member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. Tse graduated from the Northern
lllinois University in the USA with a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Ms. Tse is currently employed in a leadership position by a
worldwide computer corporation in Hong Kong. Prior to that, she has
been in the information technology and software industry for more
than 17 years.

Ms. Lai May Lun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in March 2006. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Ccommittee. Ms. Lai graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor degree in social science and a master degree
in business administration. Ms. Lai had been the administration
manager of a charitable foundation in Hong Kong. Prior to that, she
had worked for the Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited for more
than 20 years and had extensive experience in various areas of
telecommunications.

Senior Management

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of
the business and operations of the Group and are regarded as the
members of the senior management team of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors (“Directors”) of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) are pleased to present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the
year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 51 to 148.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Summary Financial Information

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years.

REMRERARAR(ARADER(E
EDMAREWEZREARKRBARAEHE
BE_T—HF=-"A=T—HILFEZREZ
M ®mE -

FERE

ARAZEBEBHA/REZER STENEAR
AZEBEBHIBTENYBHRERMEIS FA
AEEZTB2EBMEVEERNE -

RKIERERR

AEEBE_T-RAF=-A=+T"HLFEZ
BERERARABAKSEEE B ZHHARTEHR
ESNEEFMBAEZMBRERA -

EEgTEENBE-_T—RAF=A=1+—H
I FEIRFEMMBSR

MERHER

AEEBEREMRFEENEZRENEE
HEEHENT -

Results EF
Year ended 31 March
BZE=H=1+—HLFE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—¥=-HF —T-NF —_FT-=Ff —F-—=F —_F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FATT FAT TAET TAT
Revenue & 9,763 24,209 57,161 67,244 85,846
(Loss)/profit before tax  BR#L AT (E1) % F (28,307) (41,607) (29,444) (23,849) 4,524
Income tax (expense)/  FriE% (Fs) /%
credit (1,400) (6) 67 (1,626) (3,229)
(Loss)/profit for the year ZNA BIHEZEFEA A
attributable to FEEER(EE),/
equity holders i A
of the Company (29,707) (41,613) (29,377) (25,475) 1,295
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Report of the Directors

BEIWE
Summary Financial Information (continued) MERHBEE m
Assets and Liabilities EEREE

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HF —T—NF —T—=F —T——-F —T——
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET FHET FHET
Property, plant and Y - BENERE
equipment 2,351 3,373 3,907 4,043 4,527
Investment property BBy 4,367 4,767 4,490 3,444 3,278
Deposits Bk 141 371 — 717 826
Available-for-sale A ERE
investments 832 831 831 826 809
Deferred tax asset LT TEE E — 1,394 1,396 1,303 3,615
Current assets MEEE 9,884 25,852 76,742 91,705 111,123
Current liabilities mEN B E (27,942) (25,273) (37,392) (23,780) (24,610)
Non-current liability ERBEE (500) (499) (499) (493) 472)
Net (liabilities)/assets (& &) EBEFE (10,867) 10,816 49,475 77,765 99,096
Share capital % 7 79,610 75,635 75,635 75,635 75,635
Reserves ERi (90,477) (64,819) (26,160) 2,130 23,461
Total (deficit in (BEBA)
assets)/equity ek (10,867) 10,816 49,475 77,765 99,096

Property, Plant and Equipment and

Investment Property

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and the

MR BEREMLEREMER

AEEYE BEERRBUAEKEDERFA

investment property of the Group during the year are setoutin notes < BB D B A B 75 HmERMFE13 %14
13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.
Share Capital and Share Options BS 2 B s B 48
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share AR ERARBIRERFR 2 EZFED RIS
options during the year are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial A B4 7 3k 3 My 5126 1. 27 ©
statements, respectively.
REMNFEERERAR
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Report of the Directors
EEIWRE

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the "Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 28(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution as calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
(2001 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Under the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to the
Shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The share premium account may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 100% (2014. 88%) of the
Group'’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 98% (2014: 55%) of the
Group's total sales.

During the year under review, the Group did not have supplies from
suppliers. During the year ended 31 March 2014, supplies from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 32% of
the Group's total cost of sales and supplies from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 11% of the Group's
total cost of sales.

BEmEE
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Report of the Directors
ESEeWmE

Major Customers and Suppliers (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 March 2015, Right
Advance Management Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company) was interested in approximately 13.46% of the issued
share capital in a company which is the second largest customer of
the Group. The ultimate beneficial shareholder of Right Advance
Management Limited (namely, Mr. Wang Leilei) together with Right
Advance Management Limited were, directly and indirectly, interested
in a total of approximately 19.55% of the issued share capital in such
Company. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any Shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping
Mr. Han Jun (redesignated from a non-executive Director

on 5 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mah Yong Sun (retired on 6 August 2014)

Ms. Li Luyi (redesignated from an executive Director
on 5 February 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Yip
Heon Keung, Mr. Yip Heon Ping and Ms. Lai May Lun will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM").

Pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Han Jun and
Ms. Li Luyi will hold office until the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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REERHN RZE—RAF=A=+—8"
A A Al 2z £ Z M ERight Advance Management
Lmited#E B — B2 R(AEBE_KEF)
B 17T ] A #1346% < HE z= © Right Advance
Management Limited 2 X BEm KR (BN FHE
4t 4 ) 38 [F] Right Advance Management Limited B £
MEEEEZ AR 2B BITRA £ K1955%.2
i o BR EXFIHBEEIN  RRRIEFHEM
REZHMBANTMRR (MESHAM - HEAR
RABBITRAB%E) REFAEAEERKX
ERIHERTHEEBEMNERER -

EF
RENRBEFREASAAANERESNOT -

BITES:

EmRkE(ZE)

DR

BELEE (RZE-—AF-FAAOBHIHRT
EEHRE)

FHTES:

SHHEE (RZF-—EOFNAARNARE)
FE—zt (RZZE—AF_ARAHBHGTE

BYFHITES :
BIRERE
#AXLZL
Rt

RIBEBEIZMAE108G  EmELE KR
FREERBI AT HBBESR  ERENA
BERYRABREBRTZARARREFRE
(TERBFAE]) EBEEEE-

BREABERAAEN2E BELERFE—
LEIREBREERRBFASG  AFAERIL
RERBRRBFAG LBREMT-

REMBEZERERAT
—T—RFEFR

19




Report of the Directors
EEIWRE

Independent Non-executive Directors’
Confirmations of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of its independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Yip Heon Keung, an executive Director, entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 April 2003 (the “2003 Service Contract”) which
was renewed automatically each year for successive terms of one
year each subject to termination by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreement entered into between Mr. Yip Heon Keung
and the Company on 1 April 2013, the terms of the 2003 Service
Contract was extended for a fixed term of three years from 1 April
2013 to 31 March 2016, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association. Save as amended by the supplemental agreement, all
other provisions of the 2003 Service Contract remain in full force and
effect.

Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an executive Director, entered into a Director’s
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 6 August 2009 and expiring on 5 August 2012 (the
"2009 Service Contract”), subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other party.
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered into between Mr.
Yip Heon Ping and the Company on 6 August 2012, the terms of the
2009 Service Contract was extended for a fixed term of three years
from 6 August 2012 to 5 August 2015, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association. Save as amended by the supplemental
agreement, all other provisions of the 2009 Service Contract remain
in full force and effect.
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Report of the Directors
ESEeWmE

Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

Mr. Han Jun, redesignated from a non-executive Director to an
executive Director in February 2015. There is no service contract
entered into between the Company and Mr. Han. Mr. Han is not
appointed for any specific term but will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with
the Articles of Association. The emoluments of Mr. Han will be
determined by the Board with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Group.

Ms. Li Luyi, redesigned from an executive Director to a hon-executive
Director in February 2015. Since then, there is no service contract
entered into between the Company and Ms. Li. Ms. Li is not appointed
for any specific term but will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association and Ms. Li will not receive any Director’s emoluments.

The term of appointment of each of the independent non-executive
Directors under their respective letter of appointment made with the
Company has been renewed for a term of one year commencing
from the date set out below and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the
Articles of Association:

Commencement date of renewed term
20 August 2014

1 January 2015

1 March 2015

Name

Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine
Ms. Lai May Lun

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
EEIWRE

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board are authorised by the Shareholders in general meeting to
fix the Directors’ remuneration. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, the results of the Group as well as the prevailing
market conditions.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in
notes 8 and 30 to the financial statements.

The Directors confirmed that during the year under review, the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company adopts and administers a share option scheme which
is currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. The Company'’s original share option scheme
was approved by the Shareholders on 7 March 2000 (the “2000
Scheme”), and was terminated and replaced by a share option
scheme approved by the Shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the “2002
Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new
share option scheme approved by the Shareholders on 5 August
2011 (the “New Scheme”). The options granted under the 2000
Scheme, which were not exercised or terminated or expired
previously, became expired on 21 August 2011. Further details of the
2002 Scheme and the New Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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ESEeWmE

Share Option Schemes (continued) AERRAERT & )

The following tables disclose movements in the Company’s share TR TEARE E AR QT 14 K175 R E 2 &
options outstanding during the year: (=D

2002 Scheme BB _F5E

Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFURTZROBE

Cancelled Exercised Lapsed Date of Exercise period of  Exercise price of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of share options share options
of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2015 share options* granted granted**
28% R-E2-mE RER RER RER RZZ-1F BiRE REBRE RIL R
ABAER mA—-H e (igi:d %% =ZA=t-H Rt BH* ZITEHR ZITEE
HK$ per share
B (gk)
Director
=
M. Li Luyi 4,000,000 (4,000,000) — = —3 9 February 2010 9 February 2010 to 0.660
FE—%t —ZT-%f
ZAnA T—1
ZZ-ZE-ANR
2,500,000 (2,500,000) — — — 23 November 2010 23 November 2010 to 0.270
2% 22 November 2020
AT e T e e e e
—E-ZF+-A=t=H
6,500,000 (6,500,000) P = =
Other employees
of the Group
K&
HitEE
In aggregate 100,000 . = (100,000) = 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 0.100
Ch e s 25March 2014
=A=tAAR “EENE=A-tXAZE
“Z-ME=A=1+HA
In aggregate 700,000 = (400,000) (300,000 — 10 May 2006 10 May 2006 to 0.170
G Z3TRE 9 May 2016
AA+H “ZERERATAE
—Z-~ERANA
In aggregate 1,560,000 (1,500,000) i (60,000) — 9 February 2010 9 February 2010 to 0.660
Ch —2-%F 8 February 2020
—AhB “Z-Z5-_ANAZE
ZE-Z4-ANH
In aggregate 2,050,000 (1,500,000) — (550,000) — 23 November 2010 23 November 2010 to 0.270
At —T-ZF 22 November 2020

t=Achi=H —B-FE+—A_=-HE
—ZZFF+-RA=1+ZH

EERNRERERAR 23
—E-hEFR
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Share Option Schemes (continued) AR AERT B )
2002 Scheme (continued) —EE_F5E (#)

Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFURTZROGE

Cancelled Exercised Lapsed Date of Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of share options share options
of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2015  share options* granted granted**
280E R-E-WF RER RER RER RIB-EF BRE RUBRE RUBRE
ARAER mA-A i Eig:d X¥® =A=+-H R B ZITRER ZiTEE™
HK$ per share
BT (ER)
Others
Hit
In aggregate 200,000 = = (200,000 = 26 March 2004 26 March 2004 to 0.100
At g3 J 2 25 March 2014
ZA=+AA ZETWE=R=F+RHZE
—Z-ME=A=1+HA
In aggregate 2,000,000 = (2,000,000) = = 24 June 2005 24 June 2005 to 0.100
Gh ZZTRE 23 June 2015
NAZtHmA ZZTREAAZTHAZ
“Z-RFRAZtZ=H
In aggregate 1,000,000 = = (1,000,000) = 29 June 2006 29 June 2006 to 0.380
A&t ZZTRE 28 June 2016
NA-thA ZZTRERAZTARE
“E-R"ERAAZTNR
In aggregate 5,000,000 = o~ (5,000,000) = 6 July 2007 1 October 2008 to 0.3%
G T3 5 July 2017
+ARA “FT\F+A-HE
—Z-t5t+AAA
In aggregate 9,200,000 = — (9,000,000) 200,000 3 April 2008 3 April 2008 to 0410
Ch —ET)\F 2 April 2018
MmA=A —ZT)\FMA=HE
“Z-\¥MAZRA
In aggregate 200,000 — — — 200,000 3 June 2008 3 June 2008 to 0417
A3t —EEN\F 2 June 2018
~NA=H —ZZ\FRA=RE
—F-\FRAZRH

28,510,000 (9,500,000) (2,400,000 (16,210,000) 400,000
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Report of the Directors
ESEeWmE

Share Option Schemes (continued) AERRAERT & )
New Scheme et &l

Number of shares issuable under the options***
REBRETFURTZROBE

Cancelled Exercised Lapsed Date of Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March grant of share options share options
of participant 2014 the year the year the year 2015  share options* granted granted**
28% R-B-mF RER RER RER R-B-E1% BRE BiBRE BiBRE
HBAER mA-A B 7 %% =ZA=t-A Bt A 2SR ZATHEE
HK$ per share
BT (GRH)
Directors
3
M. Yip Heon Keung 7,000,000 — (5,600,000) - 1,400,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to 0.165
EmdtsE —F-=f 4 December 2023
+=AEA “Z-=F5+-RRBZE
“R-=F+-AMA
M. Yip Heon Ping 7,000,000 - (5,600,000) - 1,400,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013to 0.165
Em¥EsE 2 T 4 December 2023
+-AER —T-=F+-ARHZE
ZE-=F+-AMA
14,000,000 — (11,200,000 - 2,800,000
Other employees
of the Group
AEE
HittiEE
In aggregate 2,800,000 (500,000) (5000000 (1,750,000) 50,000 27 March 2013 27 March 2013 to 0.162
=il ST 26 March 2023
ZA=++H =R = SHEEHE
—B_=f=A=1xH
In aggregate 14,000,000 — (10,650,000) (750,000) 2,600,000 5 December 2013 5 December 2013 to 0.165
CE —E-=F 4 December 2023
+-ARA “Z-=%+-RAAZE
—2-=41-AMmA
30,800,000 (500,000) (22,350,000) (2,500,000) 5,450,000
Notes to the tables of share options outstanding during the year: FABARITEBARER 2 M5 -
e The time of acceptance of the share options was within 21 days from x BREZEMNSEE AEEREZNHHE®EET
the options offer date. The share options granted are subject to 21HA - RIS E@ERETEIZHETE - AT
certain vesting period and vary for each category of participant as BREZERERNETR2EEHIMZE T
specified under the respective share option schemes. TRZEBEHMRR -
**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in »* EREZITEEEHKRMARET  HAD
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the AR S A AR LN B A] T2 o
Company's share capital.
***  There were no share options granted during the year. *k o EE NN B ARAE o
As at 31 March 2015, the Company had outstanding optionsto RZ-ZZE—RAF=A=+—8 ' X2 a2 BEE
subscribe for up to 400,000 shares and 5,450,000 shares under the === — F 52| & ¥zt &l A Al 2 B & % 400,000
2002 Scheme and the New Scheme, respectively. 1% 1% 15 B2 5,450,000 8% f& 15 2 181 AR 17 58 BB AR o
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")) which were notified to the Company and the Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors adopted by the Company,
notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company

ERREIETBRARRKRORER
BRifziERR%E
R-ZT-—AF=A=+—A EERIETH
ABRADAREEMARER (ERLBSR
B0 ([ % RAEHED ) BXVE) 285
ARG F - A REE S RGP EXV
HETRESH BAME AN T R P2 M2
R#E (BEREES RARGIRBERS
WEERRAEA 2 EHLKR) - RADHER
ARRAREES RS GO E2GABE 2B
EftR s RAE  AREARAMRAA
HEFRTESR S ZTATUEME LA A
BB 2 B RARIT

RARNFEBRZITFE
Percentage of

the Company’s
issued share

capital

Note (3)

Capacity and P N

nature of interest Number of 2RITRAE

Name of Director Notes =279 ordinary shares Aok

= Bt & EattE ZEREE Q)

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (1) Personal interest and interest of 186,282,918 23.40%
& [ 58 o & a controlled corporation
&l At 25 K —H
a2 NI 3

Mr. Yip Heon Ping 2) Object of a discretionary family trust, 186,282,918 23.40%
ZEmFELEE personal interest and through

a controlled corporation
PRRGERIABEEHR

EA R s N R — XA

5
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Report of the Directors
ESEeWmE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) An aggregate of 180,682,918 shares are held by Greenford Company
(PTC) Limited ("Greenford”) and Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corporation
("Bakersfield”) as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The
Bakersfield Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which are held by
Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited ("Ace Central”) as the trustee of The
New Millennium Trust, a discretionary family trust and Mr. Yip Heon
Keung is the sole director and sole shareholder of Ace Central. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Keung is deemed to be interested in
180,682,918 shares of the Company held by Ace Central. In addition,
he is also personally interested in 5,600,000 shares of the Company.

2) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Heon Ping, being one of the discretionary
objects of The New Millennium Trust for the time being, is deemed to
be interested in 180,682,918 shares of the Company. Among these
shares, 121,597,702 shares are held by Greenford as a beneficial
owner. The entire issued share capital in Greenford is held by Mr. Yip
Heon Ping. In addition, he is also personally interested in 5,600,000
shares of the Company.

) Based on 796,105,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2015.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company
are separately disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” above.

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company held
for the benefit of the Company solely.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position
in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was notified to the Company and the
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

EFERFTETHABNEMRER
BRipZEERKE &)
RARFEBRZ TR (&)

M aE

¢ 4 #£180,682,918 A& A% 1 A Greenford Company
(PTC) Limited ([ Greenford |) % Bakersfield Global (PTC)
Corporation ([ Bakersfield ) 43 51 A The Greenford Unit
Trust & The Bakersfield Unit Trust . 5% 3T A & 19 35
B ZFEFE 2 A B9 FAce Central Group
(PTC) Limited ([ Ace Central ) BAThe New Millennium
Tust(— 2 ERIEER) 2ZFEAFDHE -
M 3£ 7138 45 4 ABAce Central 2 M — 2 3 o —
BER - IRIEESH R GG - ERREERER
A RAce Centralis A 2 7K 22 71180682918 % A% 17
PEBRER o ILAN - B IR AN R F]15600000
BRARAD 2 (B A #E2S ©

@ WEZEFKRBEEEKH F ATheNew
Millennium Trust&® B K & — B 2 B ¥
R B\ T EERR RN AR F180682918
BBEHDFHEEEZD  RZERHF
121,597,702 P& B% 1 A Greenford A & 5 # A
A& #E A - Greenford® & 2 3 17 B% 2N B
HERFEERFH - N BITEAARRAR
5,600,0008% A% 17 2 & A #E 55 o

Q" BER=2 A== F—HE%TZ
796,105,000 A A &l IR 5T & ©

#ENAD BRI HSDT
S8 —HARE -

R EX R

BERESN  BETEEMARAAFEREEA
AR T KA 2 3R AR A S

B EXFIREEIN RZE—RE=A=1+—
B ARARIEERFTETHAERAARRE
EEEEE 2 T RRIBERD A REES
BIEFEHRHEEN EXVEET7 R E8H 58 A A
GARBI RBRzERZSOAR  HREBEES
N HE & B E35216 78 F ook - skiR BRI E R £
MR AL IRAME AR T KB R 2 a5k

KB o

REMBEZERERAT
—T—RFEFR
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”
and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

As at 31 March 2015, Shareholders (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
Company

EERERMKRGZHEF

REXTEREASIRIEEREBITRAR
Rt kBB 2 Em KRR IMEARES
S REREMABERERNTIANESE  BFX
BEBHIAKNEFRROZERBEARAZ RN
HEHFMER RN REITRREITEETA UL
ERMN RNRB S EAEANE QR &R
AFEESEIMNEMEIABBESZEIEN L
BT 5k

FERRZHEBREE

RZZE-—RAF=ZA=1+—H REARBRMHK
MEROTHRERAREE R MREHRAEXVEF2
REINFZGXARARRBRE  HBALHER
ARBIRBEES R ERPIEBERHF BT
MzBEHIARZBER(EFHARAETETH
ABERINGATE ¢

RARFEBRKIGRARD 247 E

Percentage of

the Company's

issued share

capital

Number of Note (8)

Capacityand  ordinary shares or NN

nature of interest underlying shares EETRA

Name of Shareholder Notes FHR EBRR otk

REAE k33 BEME HERBHE Pt @)

Greenford Company (PTC) Limited (1 Beneficially owned 121,597,702 15.27%
Enls

Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited (“Century”) ) Beneficially owned 114,851,701 14.43%
ExlE

Bakersfield Global (PTC) Corparation 3 Beneficially owned 59,085,216 7.42%
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the

FERRZHERAEE @)

RERNGEBRLIEBR D 2B (F)

Company (continued)
Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital
Number of Note (9)
Capacityand  ordinary shares or F N
nature of interest underlying shares BRTRA
Name of Shareholder Notes FHR EBERD Ak
RRER k=3 MY HERGHE P9
Ace Central Group (PTC) Limited (4) Trustee of a discretionary 180,682,918 22.70%
(as trustee of The New Millennium Trust) family trust and through
(LA The New Millennium Trust controlled corporations
ZEFTANER) T RERIGEEL
REARER
S g2 1N
Mr. Yip Seng Mun 2),3), 4 &) Founder of a 300,095,619 37.70%
EBRRLE discretionary family trust,
beneficially owned and through
controlled corporations
FRERIKETZ
BN BEREBRER
g g2y VNG
Right Advance Management Limited (6) Beneficially owned 150,000,000 18.84%
ExlA
Ms. Wang Li Mei 6) Interest of a controlled corporation 150,000,000 18.84%
Fiulsat —HEXEHRA R
Mr. Wang Leilei 6) Interest of a controlled corporation 150,000,000 18.84%
FERELE —RZ RS DA Es
Will City Limited 7 Beneficially owned 100,000,000 12.56%
THERAA Ex%A
Ms. Zhang Yingnan (7) Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000 12.56%

RAMIL

—RAXEH AR Ea

REMREZERERARF
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares or underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) Greenford is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
its entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yip Heon Ping, an
executive Director.

2) Century is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip Seng
Mun, a former Director.

) Bakersfield is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and its entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Yip
Seng Mun.

(4) An aggregate of 180,682,918 shares are held through Greenford and
Bakersfield as trustees of The Greenford Unit Trust and The
Bakersfield Unit Trust, respectively. All the units of which are held by
Ace Central as the trustee of The New Millennium Trust, a
discretionary family trust established with Mr. Yip Seng Mun as the
founder and Mr. Yip Heon Ping as one of the discretionary objects for
the time being. Mr. Yip Heon Keung, an executive Director, is the sole
director and sole shareholder of Ace Central.

(5) By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip Seng Mun is deemed to be interested in
180,682,918 shares of the Company as the founder of The New
Millennium Trust, 114,851,701 shares of the Company as the
beneficial owner of Century and personally interested in 3,761,000
shares of the Company. In addition, he is also entitled to his share
options to subscribe for 800,000 shares of the Company in his
capacity as an employee of the Group.

(6) Right Advance Management Limited (“Right Advance”) is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and its entire issued share
capital is registered in the name of Ms. Wang Li Mei, and such shares
are ultimately owned by Mr. Wang Leilei. Ms. Wang Li Mei is the sole
director of Right Advance.

7) Will City Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and its entire issued share capital is held by Ms. Zhang
Yingnan.

(8) Based on 796,105,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2015.

FERRZEERKE (@)

RAERGBBRLIEGER D 4B (B)

GEE

()

Greenford B —FHIR EB R X HS MK L2
AR HEPEBTRAHRATESERT
LERAE -

Centuy 2 —HRRBRLXFSFMKIZ A
Al H2HERTRAHAINTESERRE
FERHREAR °

BakersfieldZ — R KB E X BES MK L
2R EEHERITRAHERRALE
WA -

A #£180,682,918 B B 19 faGreenford
T Bakersfield % Bl LA The Greenford Unit Trust &
The Bakersfield Unit TrustZ RFEA S H
ZH 155 2 Bt A B 19 i Ace Central BAThe
New Millennium TrustZ St A S0 EE - M
The New Millennium Trust2 — B E B A EER
EEBBIBARNERFEREREF—22
EEEHRMEZEEREETL - AITES
TR o8 S A AAce Centralz HE— & E & ME—
BEER -

BIEESF K BE KO £ BThe New
Millennium Trustz &l #% A @ E B R /& & ®
B A ¥R K R F180,682918 % i 17 2
HofERCentuyz BEX WA AER AD
A)114851, 701 R IR P < #E = kB AR A
3761000 f&p < {8 ARz o UEON - ERAR
SEZEE - HINEA AR E800000% A8 A
AR Z BRRHE -

Right Advance Management Limited ([ Right
Advance ]) & — [ 5 5 & BE 22 8% & 5 it B 32
ZAE HREEBITRALNEZIBLZLT 2
ZEAM MEFELEAREEEZER
% » £ L L ARight Advance 2 fE— & = -

TWAR AR A —F R B LA S
VAR REHERTRAAREAMRZ L
A °

BENR-F-BE=A=L—ABRGZ
796,105,000 A A A A &t &
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Company has not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed by the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors or the controlling Shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) have any interests in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group during the year.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their performance, qualifications and
competence. As incentives for their contributions to the Group, the
employees of the Group and all the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors)
may also be granted share options by the Company from time to
time pursuant to the share option scheme.

The emoluments of the Directors are either determined by the
Remuneration Committee or recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market remuneration packages for executive and non-
executive directors of listed issuers in Hong Kong.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee ("Audit Committee”)
on 7 March 2000 and has formulated and from time to time amended
its written terms of reference in accordance with the provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”).

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group'’s financial information and
review of the Group’s relationship with its auditors.

FERRZHERAEE @)

BREXEEEN R-T-—RF=A=1t—8"
ARRAYBEEMAL(BEERARBERITH
ABERIN) ME R FR AR F A AR R
BEEREBES MBE GO BEXVEBE2RFEID G
ZHEXBRARRBEBENEDZIRE - HAL
BRARRRRIEE 7R A E R FIB6RET <
Btz EmIRE -

EERREERBCHER

FA BEFHAARAZEBRBERIKES S
ZHBA(EERAERLTRA) RERKHE
EGBRBEFRAEBNEFNERAEEET
MR A SR EHT - HEREE TS -

B & B 3%

ARAIZEMEES((HFMEZEG ) ERNER
ZRB -BERENHIEAEEREREZMER
R-ARBEELMBES (BRBIUIFENTE
ENRFFRITESR) IR AR BRBEBRE S
TRETEREUMMESREHAKEMERR
ZBER °

FNZEERBEASEZEERE  BAARR
REBEMBETARNTESTRFATESAL
BmsHMEINEEEE I MeARNEFTEIR

HEe= -

FRERE

ARAER-EREF=ALARUBRERS
(IEHZAR))  LERBCEETATU(LE
EATRID) BT 2 TR AT BOR RS SR B
HEGE -

ERZEE T EREEREHNLAERAEE
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Chairman of the Audit
committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, who is of
the opinion that such statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors considered that the Company has complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code as contained in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under review. Save for
the deviation disclosed for the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer under the CG Code provision A.2.1.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the GEM Listing Rules based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

Auditors

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB") whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint HLB as auditors of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Yip Heon Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 June 2015
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERRE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests of
all Shareholders. The good corporate governance principles adopted
by the Company emphasise a quality board for leading and
controlling of the Company, effective internal controls, transparency
and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company'’s code of corporate governance practices was adopted
with reference to the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report
(“CG Report”) as contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year under review, save for the deviation
disclosed below of the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer under the CG Code provision A.2.1.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors gave confirmation that he/she
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Board of Directors

Composition

During the year under review, Mr. Mah Yong Sun retired as a non-
executive Director on 6 August 2014. Mr. Han Jun has been
redesignated from a non-executive Director to an executive Director
and Ms. Li Luyi has been redesignated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director, both with effect from 5 February 2015.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. All Directors gave sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2015. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and
efficiently. In full compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company had in place three independent non-
executive Directors and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. They provided the Company with diversified
industry expertise, advised the management on strategic
development and assumed that the Board maintains high standard
of compliance with financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements as well as provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Board as at 31 March 2015 comprised:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Heon Keung  (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Heon Ping
Mr. Han Jun (redesignated from a non-executive

Director on 5 February 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mah Yong Sun  (retired on 6 August 2014)

Ms. Li Luyi (redesignated from an executive Director
on 5 February 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Chun Wan

Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine

Ms. Lai May Lun
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)
The names, biographical details of the Directors and the relationships
among them are set out in the "Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions
from time to time is posted on the website of the Exchange and the
Company’s website from time to time.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Under the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

During the period from 1 April 2014 to 5 February 2015, Ms. Li Luyi
assumed the role of the chief executive officer of the Company and
responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Group.

During the year under review, the Chairman, Mr. Yip Heon Keung, was
responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively and
smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensured that good corporate
governance practices were adhered to and proper procedures were
established and followed, and that all Directors were properly briefed
and received all relevant information prior to each Board meeting.
The Chairman was also responsible for overseeing the implementation
of corporate strategies of the Group.

Following the resignation of Ms. Li Luyi as the chief executive officer
of the Company on 5 February 2015, the appointment of the chief
executive officer is still outstanding. The Company will continue to use
its best endeavours to fill the vacancy as soon as practicable.

Acting Chief Executive Officer

As mentioned above, the appointment of the chief executive officer
of the Company is still outstanding. During the transitional period, Mr.
Yip Heon Keung, the Chairman of the Company, will assume the post
of the acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
5 February 2015.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. Notice of at least 14
days for all Board meetings were given to all Directors, who were all
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for each meeting, and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations regarding the
meetings are observed. The finalised agenda and accompanying
Board papers are then sent to all Directors prior to each meeting.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Board held four regular full
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Board meetings. The individual attendance record of each Directoris HEAHMAEHrEEEe e KFEFLH
as follows: PEEB2LHEAT -
Attendance
Directors BE= R "
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) B kL (E/E) 4/4
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ZERFEEE 4/4
Mr. Han Jun (redesignated from a non-executive 8ExX4E (R ZE—RHF_AFHH 3/4
Director on 5 February 2015) MIEAHITEEFE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun  (retired on 6 August 2014) STt (R_ZE—mENASNHEE) 0/4
Ms. Li Luyi (redesignated from an executive ZR—ZLTt(R=_F—AHF=_FAH 2/4
Director on 5 February 2015) H#AITESHT)
Independent non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. Tam Chun Wan EBIRE LA a/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine WAB L 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun REfmT T 4/4

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Company, monitored financial
performances and discussed the annual and interim results, set
annual budgets, as well as discussed and decided on other
significant matters.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Apart from the regular Board meetings of the year, the Board met on
other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter
was required. The Directors would receive the agenda and
documents to be tabled for consideration and minutes of committee
meetings in advance of each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary recorded the proceedings of each Board
meeting in details by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions
made by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft Board minutes were circulated to all
Directors for comments and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection by the Directors at
any reasonable time on their request. All Directors have access to
relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures
that management will supply the Board and its committees with all
relevant information in a timely manner.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on internal
unaudited financial statements so as to give them a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and delegated to
management. The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to executive Directors and senior management while reserving
certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Company'’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of
the Company and overseeing its management. It is also responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended at Board meetings.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Work Commitments Outside the Group
Directors are required to disclose in a timely manner to the Company
Secretary for any change, the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments, and the identity of such public companies or
organisations. Such information is disclosed in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Directors’ Training

The Company provides newly appointed Directors with briefings on
the businesses of the Group and training materials on corporate
governance, directors’ duties and responsibilities and other matters
under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant rules and regulations.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, which has come
into effect from 1 April 2012, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the year under review,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending in-house briefing, studying materials on
the topics related to corporate governance and regulations and/or
attending or participating in industry-specific seminars and
conferences and provided a record of training to the Company.
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Type of trainings

Directors = EIER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) HEmoastAk (EE) ABCH -2 &
Mr. Yip Heon Ping BEmFEEE ABCH -Z 1"
Mr. Han Jun (redesignated from a non-executive 8EHL4 (RZZET—HF_FAHH ARBLEH S 7,

Director on 5 February 2015)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ Training (continued)

EET @)
=Y ()

Type of trainings

Directors B=E EHlER
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Mah Yong Sun  (retired on 6 August 2014) BHHAEE(RZZE—HFNARBRT) ABR . Z
Ms. Li Luyi (redesignated from an executive FE—ZET(RZE—RAF-ARH ABR -7

Director on 5 February 2015) M#MITE ST

Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRE LA ABCR- -2 A
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AR ABHR . 7
Ms. Lai May Lun REmTT ABR -7

A attending in-house briefing in relation to corporate governance and
regulations

B: studying materials related to corporate governance and regulations

C: attending or participating in industry-specific seminars and
conferences

Directors’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to cover
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Yip Heon Keung and Mr. Yip Heon
Ping, has entered into a Director’s service contract with the Company.
Both Mr. Han Jun, the executive Director and Ms. Li Luyi, the non-
executive Director, are not appointed for any specific terms. All
independent non-executive Directors have entered into formal letters
of appointment setting out key terms and conditions relative to their
appointments. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association. Details of the terms of appointment of the Directors are
disclosed in the section “Directors’ Service Contracts” of the Report
of the Directors in this annual report.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials detailing the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the GEM Listing Rules, the Articles of Association,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Term of Appointment and Re-election (continued)

Every Director is aware that, before accepting appointment as a
Director, he/she must be able to give sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Company.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three (3) or a multiple of three (3), then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the meeting but shall not be taken into account in determining the
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at
such meeting.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s
process and communications among Board members and with the
Shareholders and the management, and advising the Board and its
committees on all corporate governance matters. She reports to the
Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer and her
selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a Board decision.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary continued to
be Ms. Lo Oi Ling who has undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training required under Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company did not engage an external service
provider as its Company Secretary.

EER @

ZEREBRHRR (@)
BEESNE  EEMRIR/ESH  WALEBE
BENBARBEBRAZTEZRHERES

REBEGEERTNRXEALGERE AR
EHGREEZRMEZTCETRERRIRZ
BERRAGLEIRRER MERER(E2
EEEEEHZES ) RELB=FRESTE—

Sk
IN

REEHKERAY  EEERRBFAE L
ERE=0Z2 - ABZES (RMEABLIF=
QH=QzEE  AZEBEOEETIR=02Z2—
ZEBB)ARESER  HEBUEF(BRERETE
THZER) WAZLEB=FHREREI R -
MEEEFEZTENERBREZR I EZTZEN
BEEARA TERRAE L  IFEERR
ARELEREME  ERBEEZAS LHERME
CEEREZTHARTBHEEA -

AFBE

ARIMERBREESFEZEFUARETEN
EMBRREEEERZESR  YHMELEE
AEHRAESEREZBERLEZ - KAE
EFEIRR/HERRTERS T MEZ
HE ROEREEERHEZTERE -

ERAERARWE 2 2ZE MR - ARERE
SEEZERFMMBERER AR RKRH -

REBEFER AAWENDAEERZL  H
EREEIZER EMRAESISERELET IR
15/ EABEREFN - AR AL EREINER
BHREBESEARNE -

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015




Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the website of the Exchange and
the Company'’s website.

The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors,;
which all members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out below.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company'’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Remuneration Committee on 17 June 2005 with written terms of
reference. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lai May Lun and one executive
Director, Mr. Yip Heon Keung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy and
structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, a meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held on 23 June 2014 for reviewing and discussing
the policy for remuneration of Directors and the senior management.
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The individual attendance record of each Remuneration Committee HE &% v 248 mT ¢
member is as follows:

Attendance
Members RE HERE
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine (Committee Chairman) HARZE (ZEEEE) 11
Ms. Lai May Lun BEmZ T 1/1
Mr. Yip Heon Keung EmgksE 1
Nomination Committee BEEEE

In accordance with the CG Code, the Company established the
Nomination Committee on 29 March 2012 with written terms of
reference. The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tam
Chun Wan and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy and making recommendations to the
Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board
succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, reviewing the size, structure and composition of the
Board, as well as assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

During the year under review, a meeting of the nomination
committee was held on 3 February 2015 to review the redesignation
of Directors. Another meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
on 23 June 2014 for the review of the nomination policy. The
individual attendance record of each Nomination Committee
member is as follows:

EFZERT W

BEESS (H)
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Attendance
Members RE R B
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Committee Chairman) % MEEE(ZEEFE) 2/2
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRERAE 2/2
Ms. Lai May Lun REmZ LT 2/2
Audit Committee EREEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 March 2000 and
has formulated and from time to time amended its written terms of
reference in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
The existing Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine and Ms. Lai May Lun.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include review and
supervision of the Group's financial reporting system and internal
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control procedures, review of the Group’s financial information and ~ ZF &R - KRG A% B EEZSE 2R o
review of the Group’s relationship with its auditors.
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under BZZE€NXCEEFERNERBITORAEH - &
review. The individual attendance record of each Audit Committee #“ZES@SKESBHFESHE 2T ¢
member is as follows:

Attendance
Members RE HEIRE
Mr. Tam Chun Wan (Committee Chairman) BRELAE(ZEESEE) 4/4
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine #t AR+ 4/4
Ms. Lai May Lun REMZ LT 4/4
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results during the year ended 31 March 2015 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure has been
made.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
and reviewing the appointment of the external auditors and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration in respect of audit
services provided by the auditors, amounted to HK$550,000 and no
non-audit related services was provided.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Group, HLB, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this
annual report.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group and has established
the Group's internal control policies and procedures for monitoring
the internal control system. The internal control system of the Group
is designed to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensure maintenance of proper
books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. The management and various
departments conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness
of the internal control policies and procedures. Besides, the Board
reviews at least annually the overall effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s internal control system is
effective, with room for improvement, to achieve the Group's internal
control objectives and will continue to assess the effectiveness of
internal controls by considering reviews performed by the Audit
committee, executive management and auditors.

Shareholders’ Relations

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant
information to its Shareholders.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with
its Shareholders through various means. The Directors host the
annual general meeting each to meet the Shareholders and answer
their enquiries. The Company also updates its Shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance through its
annual, interim and quarterly reports. The website of the Company
has provided an effective communication platform to the public and
the Shareholders.
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shareholders’ Meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2015, an annual general meeting of
the Company was held on 6 August 2014. The individual attendance

BRRERXE

HE_Z-—RAF=A=+—HILFE A2 7
RZZF-—WENARNHBETRRBEFAE - &

record of each Director is as follows: EEEEHEEGRILHENAT ¢
Attendance
Directors 2= HERE
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. Yip Heon Keung (Chairman) BEmgiE (E/E) Al
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmELL 0/1
Mr. Han Jun (redesignated from a non-executive BEEHL4E (RZZE—RAF_HAHAH 0/1
Director on 5 February 2015) MIERNITEEFE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun  (retired on 6 August 2014) EEHAE(RZE—WFENANBEMT) 0/1
Ms. Li Luyi (redesignated from an executive TE—4Lt+t(W-_E—HF_HBAH 0/1
Director on 5 February 2015) HMTESHT)
Independent non-executive Directors BIKITES
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BiIRE R E 11
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine MA¥BLL 1/1
Ms. Lai May Lun REMEt 11
Investor Relations BREERE
The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the ZARRERFAIZER LR A RRREE—1)
Shareholders and established a range of communication channels HEZEBERREIARE  BRRERKREE ZH

between itself, its Shareholders and investors in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year under review, there is no change

in the Company’s constitutional documents.

T RIEBEE REEEER  ARFZ
ABERXHLRED -
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders are
requested to follow article 64 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one day
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expense incurred by the requisition(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a Director are laid down in article 113 of the Articles of Association.
No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless a notice in
writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing
signed by such person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office. The
minimum length of the period during which such notices are given
shall be at least seven clear days and the period for lodgement of
such notices shall commence no earlier than the day immediately
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such intention and end no later than seven days before the date of
such general meeting.

BRREBMAERFINXEZER

MEHESRRE(ZT—ZFB854) WEKX
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ARBBRRERE) + 02— ZBE - ATRER
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEREE

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2838 2922, e-mail at
ir@prosten.com.cn or mail to Unit 802, 8th Floor, Dominion Centre,
43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to
the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling
Shareholders as well as the public to make rational and informed
decisions.

MEEERHERAZER

BREAJEBATHFABEMERNE XS
AAR (AR RIMEASKHEAN)  EEZEE5)
2838 2922 - & & & ir@prosten.com.cnsk B & = &
EENT 2R KERAZ595H RIEP LSIERE °

BH#EE

ARAREERR ETRAREER - RIRB
BEERRERMAREMTERE RAMH -
ARARNRRESRELR  AHEAHAE
AR AEREE  KRERRRAREME
BRAERE °
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B 2SR S

B #7 ¢t @ Fa A R4
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosten
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 148,
which comprise the consolidated and the Company'’s statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible for
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit, and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower BEAFIR

The Landmark EITEH11%

11 Pedder Street, Central ~ E i &5

Hong Kong ERITITREIE
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Independent Auditors’ Report
PRV A GRS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2015, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, which states that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$29,707,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2015 and as at 31 March 2015 the Group had net
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$18,058,000
and HK$10,867,000 respectively. These conditions, along with other
matters set forth in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number. P05467

Hong Kong, 22 June 2015

BERSRATREFURSAEBSEAVBERERM
HeRhRBEEHNERZRE -MERAZER
BUR R AZ BRED 2 # 7 - B4 B RN REF iR
MRMBBAREMBERRFAERERR LR
% o A% FERE - ZEBEE B EZ AR
RENEEEQ T RGEAMBHREREEN
NEBEE  URFTEAERBRAZERER -
BAFHZARNAMEZNERERERER -
ERNERIEEEMHRASHRRNSENL
EEfER gt aREE  URFNEREHY
BHRROERIIRTA -

HMBEE RMERERAREE ZEZER
ARBEZS R RHEER -

BR

BMRE SV BRREBETEVKRR
HAEEEA TR EQALE EEER
“E-RF=A=+—HOMBHRRAR EE
BEEZALFENBEERRERE  YEK
REBRAAGIZEBEREZ SRS -

A

ERER

EDAELRRBERNBERAT - HfEEIER
A BmEKE21 ERELR BEEERE
E_E—hFZ-A=Z+—HULEFEZEBXFHE
2 R297070008 TAER=ZFTE—HF=H=
+—BZARDEEFERBEFEIFNA
18,058,000 7T K 10,867,000 Tt ° % %5 15 I 4 7]
REDBHERWNET2IMB 2 EMEEBRFAE
EATHPR =g BSEECHELER
TEKERNFEM °

HEEHMEERAERAR
BB EEE D

RER
HEFEEZRS © PO54GT

&5 —Z2—HFAA-+_-H

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
meEmakEMEZEKBER

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 —E—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Notes
Bt %
Revenue Wz S
Cost of sales $H 5 B AR
Gross profit E ]
Other income and gains H b Y A R Uk 2 5
Selling expenses HERX
Administrative expenses THRX
Other expenses HE X
Finance costs W5 E R 6
Loss before tax MRBLAIE B 7
Income tax expense Frisfi M 10
Loss for the year attributable to AARERIEEAEL
equity holders of the Company FREE 11
Other comprehensive Hith2m (BAX) Wi :

(expense)/income:
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or 10Ss:

HEAGEET DB ERmZ
BH :

Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBZER
of foreign operations =58
Total comprehensive expense AATEREE AENL
for the year attributable to FREZEBEZHEE
equity holders of the Company
Loss per share attributable to AAREBREEFEEAERL
ordinary equity holders BRER
of the Company 12
Basic AR
Diluted e

Details of dividend are set out in note 28(c) to the financial

statements.

2015 2014
—Z2-EF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T T T
9,763 24,209
(3,213) (11,919)
6,550 12,290
1,806 1,956
(2,989) (11,443)
(31,414) (40,057)
(2,179) (4,187)
(81) (166)
(28,307) (41,607)
(1,400) (6)
(29,707) (41,613)
485
(29,724) (41,128)
(HK3.87) (HK5.50)
cents &4l cents #A
N/A N/A
THEHA TiE A

REMREZERERAF

—T—RFEFR

BRARE ZFBEN T RARMIFE28(0)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MEMRR R

31March 2015 —E—RF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—mF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% - BB REE 13 3,373
Investment property LA 14 4,767
Deposits Heo 20 371
Available-for-sale investments At EERE 16 831
Goodwill [EES 17 —
Deferred tax asset EETIRE & 18 1,394
Total non-current assets B EELLE 10,736
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables J& YRR 5k 19 5,197
Prepayments, deposits and TBFHIE - Sl REM
other receivables & W R IR 20 7,835
Pledged deposits BT R 22 250
Cash and cash equivalents ReMASEEY 22 12,570
Total current assets MEEEHE 25,852
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FE SRR SR 23 A K 9,952
Other payables and accruals Hth B A SRIB R FE AT RIE 24 11,767 11,455
Due to Directors B EE 2 A 21 2,000 555
Interest-bearing borrowing, secured BB EEE 25 1,125 —
Tax payable FET A IR 3,337 3,331
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 27,942 25,273

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015




Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

31March 2015 —E—hF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EF —Z—MmEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FABT
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS hE(AfE) BEZEE (18,058) 579
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEBERRBER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,315
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Deferred tax liability ELEHIBAE 18 500 499
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) EEZRE (10,867) 10,816
(DEFICIT IN ASSETS)/EQUITY (BEFH#) #x
(Deficit in assets)/equity AAFEZEEA
attributable to equity holders B (BEEEA) i
of the Company
Share capital & A 26 79,610 75,635
Reserves e 28(a) (90,477) (64,819)
TOTAL (DEFICIT IN ASSETS)/EQUITY (EEBH)  RBZA8E (10,867) 10,816

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised #E& M BEHRERER _ZT—HFENA T _HE
for issue by the board of Directors (the “Board”) on 22 June 2015and ZE& ([E=g )M AERRETIZ » B HIA

were signed on its behalf by : TALTRREESEE -
Yip Heon Keung Yip Heon Ping
Chairman Director

EomR EmF

FE EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  BEMI 2 i sE AZEF Bz < HKE D o
statements.

REMREZERERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Year ended 31 March 2015 &2 —E—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EARREEE AER

Foreign

Share Statutory  currency  Share
Share premium reserve translation option Accumulated Reserves Total
Notes  capital ~account fund reserve reserve losses sub-total  equity

R e ERE e EBRE
i RE&  RER HEEE EXRE  @#fE 2BEFR RE): ERe
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TExL ThEx TELT TER ThErT FTExT TER

(note a) (note b)
(fizta)  (MizEDb)
At 1 April 2014 RZE-WFNA—H 372,468 (465,481) (64,819) 10,816
Loss for the year FRER - (29,707)  (29,707) (29,707)
Other comprehensive FRHEMEE
expense for the year: X
Exchange differences on translation BWERMNEEZ
of foreign operations EREE (17) (17)
Total comprehensive expense FR2ARY
for the year pak - (29,707)  (29,724) (29,724)
Equity-settled share option Mg 7 B
arrangements 7 268 268 268
Transfer of share option reserve BRERR W EE R
on the forfeited share options BRERE - (7,336) = =
Exercise of share options TEERE 3,841 (2,362) 1479 3,954
Placement of new shares B EHR 2,550 — 2,550 4,050
Expenses on issue of new shares BIHRZAX (231) — (231) (231)
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-R%=R
=+-A 378,628 (487,852) (90477) (10,867)
AL1 Aprl 2013 R-F-=%¥mA-A 75635 32468 339 U39 7793 (U24089) (26160 49475
Loss for the year FREE = = = — — @1613)  @1613) (41,613
Other comprehensive income FREMZENRE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEB
of foreign operations ERESE — — — 485 — — 485 485
Total comprehensive FRZENE/ (FZ)
income/(expense) for the year ok = = — 485 — (41,613)  (41,128)  (41,128)
Equity-settled share option NERLEE 2 ERE
arrangements ZH 28(0) — — — — 2,469 — 2,469 2,469
Transfer of share option reserve PR R s
on the forfeited share options BRI E 28(0) — — — — (221) 21 — —
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-NFE=A
=4=F 75635 372,468 3,349 14804 10,041 (465,481)  (64,819) 10,816
Notes: MsE
(@  Statutory reserve fund @ EEREEED
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for business enterprises in the MR AR SME ([ E ) AR 2R &
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), a portion of the profits of the entities TGl RPEEMz BE O ENDEREFR
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred to the statutory reserve ERZEERBEES  EASHBESEREX
fund which is restricted as to use. When the balance of such reserve fund HRBE AR 2 50%H; - Al 22 T — 5 88 o
reaches 50% of the capital of that entity, any further appropriation is optional. AEMBESECEGHBIMAERTAISA
The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval of the relevant IAHRSH A BT 4F 2 2 1R s it & » AT - ERAE
authority, to offset prior years' losses or to increase capital. However, the BESBIERNAZDEREERZ25% °
balance of the statutory reserve fund must be maintained at least 25% of
capital after such usage.
(b)  Foreign currency translation reserve b SNEE R
Foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences SVETE S TR A A R BB XTE 2 BEFEE
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations HYEEBHERAEE 2 258 (A8 T) B
from their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. EECENZE  BEENEM2ERSTER IR
Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive income SMIETE S T ReT o ZERIMEIE S FERGT 2
and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange EREZREREEEINEBRETIEEREERA -

differences accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operations.

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 31 March 2015 B2 —E—RAF=A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-IHF —F-mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FH&T
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBzRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR % A 5 18 (28,307) (41,607)
Adjustments for: KA TEIE :
Finance costs B 1% & B 6 81 166
Interest income FEWA 57 (134) (503)
Investment income FERA 57 (502) (494)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWHE - BE&K
property, plant and equipment 1HE 2 W= 5 (1,170) (51)
Depreciation E 7 1,053 1,568
Equity-settled share option AR EE 7 BRI
arrangements 7,28(b) 268 2,469
Fair value loss/(gain) on wEMEZ AFEE
an investment property EiE, (M) 57,14 408 (284)
Impairment allowances JE WS BR SRR (B
on trade receivables 7,19 222 1,348
Impairment on other receivables H b e U B R E 7 — 818
(28,081) (36,570)
Decrease in trade receivables JE M RR SR — 6,886
Decrease in prepayments, AR FRIE ~ 5] M H M FE U
deposits and other receivables IR D 1,842
Decrease in due from Directors EWEE 2 RIER D 655
Decrease in trade payables J& 11 BR FORL 4 (2,682)
Increase in other payables b JE S ROE K 5T OB
and accruals 0 2,013
Increase in due to Directors JERTE = 2 FRIEIE AN 535
Exchange realignment b H 38 % 3
Cash used in operations KEXBRACES (21,605) (27,313)
Profits taxes paid outside Hong Kong BB BRINFG T IE ()] (596)
Net cash outflow in operating activities 4% & % 7% 2 3 & i 1 )F 58 (21,611) (27,909)

REMNEERBRATF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

\Z\S\E
an\ Eﬁiumgi’%
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2 —Z—HF=A=1+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-FfF —E—mF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET TAT
Net cash outflow in operating activities &4 ¥ 7 I8 €7t %58 (21,611) (27,909)
CASH FLOWS FROM REXEKZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received B4 F 8 5,7 503
Investment income received B E WA 57 494
Purchases of items of property, BAYWE  BEIZHEEEB
plant and equipment 13 (1,068)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BERRHEE
of property, plant and equipment Fr 1§ 5018 S, 7 90
Decrease in pledged deposits BT TR 12,490
Exchange realignment PE 8 2
Net cash inflow from investing activities & ¥ 2 45 A F58 12,511
CASH FLOWS FROM MEXBzRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceed from exercise of share options 17 {5 B BR #E B 18 20 18 —
Proceed from issue of shares fic &5 37 A% FT 18 518
under placing —
New interest-bearing borrowing raised  #&EEB 2t EEE =
Repayment of secured borrowings SEEAEERHEE (11,400)
Interest paid EENEIESS 6 (166)
Net cash flows inflow/(outflow) REER SRS
from financing activities WA CRE) F58 (11,566)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HERBEEEYRD FEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (26,964)
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzHekREeEEDY
beginning of year 39,050
Effect of foreign exchange MERE) s B FE
rate changes, net 484
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ESRESEEY
AT THE END OF YEAR 12,570
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRBAEESEYND W
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances fﬁ%&fﬂﬁ 22 10,075
Non-pledged time deposits with REE Hﬂ?EA fl IAERE
original maturity of less than B E B TE R
three months when acquired 2,495
cash and cash equivalents as REEHMBRRERREE
stated in the consolidated ReEREREIZEESR
statement of financial position ReZEY
and consolidated statement
of cash flows 12,570

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial Position
BN =

31March 2015 —E—hF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RE —T—MF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M aE FH&T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N IENG P 15 _
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B B A B R IE 15 15,885
Total non-current assets IRBEEATE 15,885
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TARTRIE « Al REHM
other receivables JiE U Zk 18 20 200
Cash and cash equivalents Re kReEEY 22 4
Total current assets REBEEMALE 204
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals B JE 5 BRIE K FE AT RUE 24 1,768 1,600
Total current liabilities REBEEEEE 1,768 1,600
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFEE (1,555) (1,396)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERABERS
CURRENT LIABILITIES (1,555) 14,489
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries B R R RIE 15 (1,838) (1,828)
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (8@ BEFEE (3,393) 12,661
(DEFICIT IN ASSETS)/EQUITY (EEFM) S
Share capital % 2N 26 79,610 75,635
Reserves " 28(h) (83,003) (62,974)
TOTAL (DEFICIT IN ASSETS)/EQUITY (&EEEA) xS E%E (3,393) 12,661

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by B XER —_E—RAF A -+ -_HEE=E

the Board on 22 June 2015 and were signed on its behalf by: SHAERIRET R  YEBABUTAIRREZES
gEE:

Yip Heon Keung Yip Heon Ping

Chairman Director

o @[ F
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRSI EE

31March 2015 —ZZE—HRF=A=+—H

2.1

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Unit 802, 8th Floor, Dominion
Centre, 43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange (the “"GEM
Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Preparation

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group'’s accounting
policies. The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
convention, except for investment property which has been
measured at fair value.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 R EE @

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated. The Group’s major
subsidiaries are operated in the PRC with Renminbi (“‘RMB”) as
their functional currency.

The Group had incurred loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$29,707,000 (2014:
HK$41,613,000) for the year ended 31 March 2015, and as at 31
March 2015, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$18,058,000 and HK$10,867,000
respectively and had a net cash used in operations of
approximately HK$21,605,000 (2014: HK$27,313,000) during the
year ended 31 March 2015. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Nevertheless, the Directors are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the date of approving the consolidated financial
statements on the basis that:

(@ the management has taken further cost control measures
to tighten the costs of operations and reduce various
general and administrative expenses; and

(b)  Dynamic Peak Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2015)
agreed to provide financial support and working capital
to the Company until the Company has sufficient funds
for the continuing operations of the Group so as to meet
its liabilities and to pay financial obligations to third
parties as and when they fall due to continue as a going
concern and carry on its business without a significant
curtailment of operations for the twelve months from the
date of approving the consolidated financial statements.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 R EE @

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the Group’s consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The validity of the going
concern assumption on which the consolidated financial
statements are prepared is dependent on the successful and
favourable outcomes of the steps being taken by the Directors
as described above. The consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis and
therefore do not include any adjustments relating to the
carrying amount and reclassification of assets and liabilities
that might be necessary should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

3 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

3 has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

At EFZRA - BEELLEEEREX
SEEEMBERERDBILEE - (FERHEEHM
BRRIMEEE  BEKLERRZAN
HRFEERR DM EEZ KD RE &
RME - ARE 2 G AV HHRERRERER
BREEERE ARSI TBHEMAEE
BEAREREMAHEERARBEZIRAE
ZiEE%ﬁ’“*EfEHjZZEETIJ1§k°

REEXE
FA%%%%&%$“E&$“?&%W

NAEHZER(EEEEER) M
%&% EARARBNAEATEERR - BIEX
S22 Il -

o HHREHRITEED

° //\?xﬁﬂ‘é‘ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*“‘@b@#&
ZERKZFAER

s BERENEREENITEEDR -
HWEFERBLBR LM =HZHERER

A—BRA FHREE  AREREHT
BERTHRE WA L HE -

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015




Notes to the Financial Statements
IR R MR T

31March 2015 —ZZE—HRFE=A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 R EE @

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following revised
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group
and effective for the first time for the Group's current year's
financial statements.

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendments) Financial Liabilities

HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
(Amendments) Non-Financial Assets

HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
(Amendments) Continuation of Hedge Accounting

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Investment Entities

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

21
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 € BERBEESHEE @)

Disclosures (continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right
of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 36
remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill or other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been allocated
when there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39 Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting for the
first time in the current year. The amendments to HKAS 39
provide relief from the requirement to discontinue hedge
accounting when a derivative hedging instrument is novated
under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify that
any change to the fair value of the derivative hedging
instrument arising from the novation should be included in the
assessment of hedge effectiveness.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and 22 € BERBEENEE @)

Disclosures (continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (Amendments)
Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets the
definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is required
to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose
of providing them with professional investment
management services,

. commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

. measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies for the first time
in the current year. HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies addresses the issue
of when to recognise a liability to pay a levy. The Interpretation
defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives
rise to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of
the levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial statements
preparation implies that an entity has a present obligation to
pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a future period.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective BB $R #E Y
The Group has not applied or early adopted the following new ANEEVERZ S5 AB SRR N EBSK
or revised HKFRSs (including their consequential amendments) REEA TS KB ME R ERHHET
that have been issued but not yet effective in these KB EMEBERER (BIEEEE
consolidated financial statements. The name and principal 1&5T) o A] g Bl 7K £= &) A5 8 &9 78 ¢ 2 B
nature of pronouncements which may be relevant to the Group ZRBREEHEEHNNWT o
are set out below.
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable BB G ERIE165 BBAIESZ
(Amendments) Methods of Depreciation REAS TR e R
and Amortisation® SE385% ({EFT ) bz~
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants® BRI EAF16E BE: EEN
(Amendments) NEBE A =N
SEA15E (BFTA)
HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: BB ENFE19% REEMEE
(Amendments) Employee Contributions’ —T——F) BB #HE
(EETR)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate SABERTERIF7E BUWHHEEZ
Financial Statements® (BETA) A’
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvement to 7 75 B 755 BR R 2E A B 7S 15 B R 2R
HKFRSs 2010-2012 CHEN) —E-ZTFF
Cycle? —E-FRH
Z F 2 B
HKFRSS (Amendments) Annual Improvement to BEMBHRREN  BFEYHHFEA
HKFRSs 2011-2013 CHEN, *fffﬁi
Cycle’ —T-=FRH
2 FE o
HKFRSS (Amendments) Annual Improvement to 778 B 75 FR i AE B & 5 B 7% B E A
HKFRSS 2012-2014 ({EETA) —T——f%
Cycle® —T—MFRH
2 [E o
HKFRS 9 (As revised in 2014)  Financial Instruments® LR ek SR TA®
AE Rl B 95%
(R—Z—WF
BAEET)
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Dates of 7 7 B 755 R R 2= B 7 7 B 7% BB sz A
(Amendments) HKFRS 9 and Transition FO5E R BB 95 2 o8
Disclosures® B3R AE A B 7 5% E A =R-D5
CCHEN) BERES
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of 778 B 75 B i A= B % E & B E
(Amendments) Assets between an LI R BB ER RAIRGEDRE
Investor and its Associate #E BI| 55 28557 ZHEZEERE
or Joint Venture® (BET ) gF A’
HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions 7 7 B 755 R R 2= A WHSE & 2w
of Interest in Joint FE115% (BETA) SRR’
Operations®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral 7 7 B 755 R R 2= B RERLERR"
Accounts® F145%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with V8 B 7% B AR Al REBEFEH
Customers® 155 Z as®
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities: Applying BEREMBHEREN REAR *&;%; :
and HKAS 28 (Amendments)  the consolidation 105 « HBM ERZERAEZ
exception® EE#& R 1258% & 1§‘J9\\'%5R3
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F285% (BT AK)
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) B R HE R ()
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. i R-ZT—NFELA B2 BHABRZFER
fH EE’;& °©

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with
limited exceptions.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments) Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortization of an intangible asset. This presumption
can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

(@ when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments) Bearer
Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a bearer
plant and require biological assets that meet the definition of a
bearer plant to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41.
The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendments) Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third parties
to defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions
are dependent on the number of years of service provided by
the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years
of service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as
a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered, or to attribute them to the
employees’ periods of service using the projected unit credit
method; whereas for contributions that are dependent on the
number of years of service, the entity is required to attribute
them to the employees’ periods of service.

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

L At cost,

o In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (or
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) B ¥R ZE B ()
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in ERETERE275 (B5TX) B
Separate Financial Statements (continued) BTk 2ERE (%;

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to be
an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it shall
account for the change from the date when the change in
status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
“vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (ii) add
definitions for “performance condition” and “service condition”
which were previously included within the definition of “vesting
condition”. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-
financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2014.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) BRERZER ()
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle ERUEHEREN S —SFEE=-ZF
(continued) —:EE%ZifEEAUE(%a)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have “similar economic characteristics”;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided
if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in
a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying
amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party
transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or
payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) R ¥R 45 A (i)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle ERVBRBEN S ——FF2=-F
—=FERHFERE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not
apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) B R HE R ()
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle ERAMEBERED— —FEEZE=E
—NFRBZFENR iE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSS, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or
vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the
offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS
7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly required
for all interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to
be included in condensed interim financial statements to
comply with HKAS 34 interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency as
the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in the
depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds being
assessed at currency level. The amendments apply from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements in which the amendments are first applied.
Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements relating
to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented elsewhere
within the interim financial report but outside the interim
financial statements. The amendments require that such
information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference from
the interim financial statements to the other part of the interim
financial report that is available to users on the same terms
and at the same time as the interim financial statements.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investment
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entity may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB
Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) BRERZER ()

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) E,%EJH%%I WMERFEIESHMT A (&)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an “economic
relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) B ER ()

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or ERUBEPERENFI0ERE B

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ERIE285 (74 RE B EHZE

its Associate or Joint Venture RAREELECHZEELES X

&

Amendments to HKAS 28: BB LT AERIE 285 Z1835] ¢

e The requirements on gains and losses resulting from o ERAEREAEBRE NS EEREM
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint EIRGEEZBEZIRTEREE A
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that EHEAER —BEK s BEAHE -

do not constitute a business.

. A new requirement has been introduced that gains or . SIA—IBEIFRT F EEEERPE N
losses from downstream transactions involving assets TS EFET IR —BE
that constitute a business between an entity and its B BEBEZ NERXSEAZBEAR
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in KEE SRR BHIER °

the investor’s financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity needs to . I —IERTE EREEZENES
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in RGHFHENTACZEERTIEBR —
separate transactions constitute a business and should BEBLELREAREIA—HE —
be accounted for as a single transaction. 5 o

Amendments to HKFRS 10: BB M R A R 1098 Z 25T ¢

An exception from the general requirement of full gain of
loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10 for
the loss control of a subsidiary that does not contain a
business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method.

New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains
or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the measurement at fair value of investments retained in
any former subsidiary that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHfERKRENNET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to
account for acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes a
business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other
standards (e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding
impairment testing of a cash generating unit to which goodwill
on acquisition of a joint operation has been allocated) should
be applied. The same requirements should be applied to the
formation of a joint operation if and only if an existing business
is contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2.3 Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 23 EHGERRENHET BB

Issued But Not Yet Effective (continued) B3R ZE A ()
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERUKBRREANEISHRREEFFS
Customers (continued) #Hz s (&)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
of the above new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether the above new and
revised HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group's
and the Company's results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 summary of Significant Accounting 24 FESHBREHE

Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
maijority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s result
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as
a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at the end of reporting period. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1. inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2:  inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment 0ss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or l0ss in the period in
which it arises (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.

#ﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁ@
REREMR  HEFNHEREEFRET
BEEER ﬁﬁﬁETﬁTEXTW
B o ML RZTR - Al AE ATk E S
BoBERRZEE (BERI) RERSE
ERARNEEZBAEEZ A WEEEMER
%Z%ﬁﬁﬁﬁkkﬁﬁ BERETEDT
CHEABRREEFELENZREEER
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ#mZ%ﬁﬁlEﬁ%&ﬂ
WE#E)  EEREBBRERELHM
AABRER(EEMBRRTFEERE
EZBERT)  ERHZEEREGBSHET
%'Wﬁ@%%@%Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁéz
BB & 5T BRI AR

ME - BERREBUARITE

ME  BERERBERABRATERE
REBEARK WX BFERREEE
ZRABHEBEBREMSEEENHE
YRR S0 S 3 BE VR E P ik 2 B RAA AR ©

EEYE  BELRRBEBRAEFRE
EZRAX (B RRE) —RNELHRE
BEMm KM - HEET A ER KN EX
RE 2 AX AN EEREEE AMEAER
é HWE BMERRBZIEEDBOATE
HgH AEESERAZSTHENI/BREE
AEREMRITEZARNEE -

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015




Notes to the Financial Statements
ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁz%ﬁﬁ%‘f

31March 2015 —ZE—HF=H=+—H

2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold building 2.5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 30%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each financial period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

An investment property is an interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such property is measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Investment property (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of an
investment property are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised to profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or 10ss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating lease are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease payments are included in the cost of land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial
assets are recognised initially, the are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables is
permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of
loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted
only when the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the
maturity date of the financial asset.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life
of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cashflows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from the
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or l0ss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available of sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are no restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax asset and liability for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax asset is reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and is recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax asset and liability are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax asset against
current tax liability and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  services income, when the relevant services have been
rendered;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(c) investment income, when the policyholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including
Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the
fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial option
pricing model, further details of which are given in note 27 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not a market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBKEE @)

Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. Employees of the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland
China are required to participate in the employee retirement
scheme operated by the relevant local government bureau in
Mainland China. The contributions to be borne by the Group
are calculated at a certain percentage of the salaries and
wages for those eligible employees.
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
Statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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2.4 summary of Significant Accounting 24 FESHBEHEHE &)
Policies (continued)

Related parties BREAL
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ (WBILTAL BIZALTSHZALTZ
related to the Group if that person: RicTAREREEHBHE

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () ekt EE s AER

(i) has significant influence over the Group, or iy HASEFEAZLE =k

@iy is a member of the key management personnel of iy ABAREBEKAE NAElZE
the Group or of a parent of the Group. ZEBAE -

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following O) (88 A TEHEAEE - BlEEmEAE

conditions applies: A&

(i)  the entity and Group are members of the same () ZERHEAEEBR —£B2
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary KREARI(AIEHAA - MEA
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). A & R R BB A B 1% b [ A 8

&) o

@iy one entity is an associate or joint venture of the ih —HEBAES ERBZEEAQ
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ARGt E(HF—ERBEK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BRABIZEBETKERRZ
member). BE AR RAEERE) o

@iy both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEEBHAR-—F=H286
party. B o

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HAEBRE=FEBZEZ
other entity is an associate of the third entity. Tt ME-—EBRZFE=H

ERZEBERA -

(V)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZERBAAEENEANEEHF
benefit of employees of either the Group or an MECEBREERAZ LY
entity related to the Group. BERL 212 T &

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) B8 S (3) BT &5 Bl A o 12 ) 3k 4t

I0
P
HeF
i

person identified in ().

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence Vi) R@OFTHAIALHZERESE
over the entity or is a member of the key ARBNSIBEZER (HZEE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZERE)EEEBAER °
of the entity).
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2.4 summary of significant Accounting 24 FESHBRIEE @)

Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between a group and a related party, regardless
of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@ that person's children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b)  children of that person's spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person's spouse or
domestic partner.

Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value. Please refer
to note 17 to the financial statements for the carrying value of
goodwill at the end of reporting period.
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables
Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is made
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. The identification of doubtful
debts requires management judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will have an impact on
the carrying value of the receivables as well as doubtful debt
expenses or write-back of doubtful debts in the period in which
such estimate has been changed. Please refer to notes 19 and
20 to the financial statements for the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables at the end of reporting
period.

Estimation of fair value of an investment property

As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the
investment property was revalued at the end of the reporting
period on an open market, existing use basis by an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the estimation, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including current prices
in an active market for similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period. Please refer to note 14 to the financial
statements for the carrying value of investment property at the
end of reporting period.

Valuation of share options

As described in note 27 to the financial statements, the
Company engaged an independent firm of professional
qualified valuers to assist in the valuation of the share options
granted during the years ended 31 March 2014. The fair value
of options granted under the share option schemes is
determined using the binomial option pricing model. The
significant inputs into the model were share price at grant date,
risk-free interest rate, exercise price and expected volatility of
the underlying shares. When the actual results of the inputs
differ from management'’s estimate, it will have an impact on
share option expense and the related share option reserve of
the Company. The Company did not grant any share options
during the year. The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2014 was HK$2,813,000.
Further details of the share options are set out in note 27 to
the financial statements.
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2015
was approximately HK$Nil (2014: HK$1,394,000). Further details
are contained in note 18 to the financial statements.

Current income taxes

The Group's subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax in the period in which such
determination is made. The provision for income tax of the
Group and the Company at 31 March 2015 was approximately
HK$3,337,000 (2014: HK$3,331,000) and nil (2014: nil),
respectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Significant Estimation Uncertainties and
Accounting Judgements (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency transactions in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional currencies of the
entities comprising the Group, judgement is required to
determine and consider the currency that mainly influences
sales prices of services and of the country/jurisdiction whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly determines the sales
prices of services; the currency that mainly influences labour
and other costs of providing services; the currency in which
funds from financing activities are generated; and the currency
in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.
The functional currencies of the entities comprising the Group
are determined based on management’'s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities operate.
When the indicators are mixed and the functional currency is
not obvious, management uses its judgement to determine the
functional currency that most faithfully represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has only one single operating segment as the Group
is principally engaged in wireless value-added services and
related business which is the basis to allocate resources and
assess performance. No geographical information is presented
as the Group's customers’ operations and assets are located in
the Mainland China.

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue of
approximately HK$9,528,000 which represents 97.6% of the
Group’s total sales was derived from services rendered to one
customer. During the year ended 31 March 2014, approximately
HK$13,329,000 and HK$4,949,000 which represented 55.1%
and 20.4% of the Group's total sales were derived from services
rendered to two customers respectively. No other single
customer contributed 10% or more to the Group'’s revenue for
each of the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. i@ Rttt A R
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net WEHBIAREB 7 & 558 - IBFNTIRER
invoiced value of services rendered during the years. B2 BRFE -
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is REEWzE - At A KRR -
as follows:
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E—FHF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Revenue &
Services income Ak 75 U A 24,209
Other income and gains Hihg A & Wi
Bank interest income HRITH B HA 503
Investment income ‘A WA 494
Net foreign exchange gains P& 5 Us 2 RE 88
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BERZHEE
plant and equipment 2 Wz 51
Fair value gain on an investment KEWE 2 A EEWE
property (note 14) (FFE14) 284
Others Hih 536
1,806 1,956
11,569 26,165
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6. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

MBER
MBEBERIWNAT :
Group
rEH
2015
—E—H0EF
HK$'000
FET

Interest on: RS
borrowing wholly repayable AN AFNTBH
within five years BECZEE
bank overdrafts RITEX
Total borrowing costs BIEE A

2014

—E—F

HK$'000
TAET

164

166
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7. Loss Before Tax 7. BRREEGE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REB ZBRBAERBENG (5t A) T3
(crediting): FIBBER
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—OF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Cost of services provided* TR AR 7 A AR * 11,919
Depreciation (note 13)* WE (KsE13)* 1,568
Minimum lease payments under NTREHEREHEE
operating leases in respect of: e
Land and buildings T i REF 2,707
Auditors' remuneration 1% B AT B & 550
Employee benefits expense (including EERAMAZ (BEEZEHE
Directors’ remuneration (note 8))**: (BFES) ) **
Wages, salaries, allowances TE  HH - EZHEREYH =
and benefits in kind 22,759
Equity-settled share option LAREeR 4 & 2 BB RE 2 B
arrangements 2,469
Pension scheme contributions RINEFHEIHRK
(defined contribution schemes) (REMHNRETED 2,858
Severance payments BERE & 632
28,718
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net bE &R, () F58 (88)
Impairment allowances on trade FEURBR SR R B R (MT5E19)
receivables (note 19) 1,348
Impairment on other receivables H fth & W R IB R (E 818
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment HB 2 W (51
Research and development costs” T 25 & B B Bk AR * 3,368
Bank interest income HRITH B HA (503)
Investment income HEWA (494)
Fair value loss/(gain) on an investment wEMEZ AFEE
property (note 14) Bia, (W) (HsE14) (284)

BHE-"Z-AF=A=+t-HLEEZE
HEREXABEFTERESRABAEY
2,098,000 7T (= Z — P4 4F : 4,570,000/ L) -
ZERANMCTA LB E 2 GRERE
q:: °

& The cost of services provided includes depreciation and employee *
benefits expense totaling approximately HK$2,098,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$4,570,000), which is also included in
the respective total amount separately disclosed above.
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Loss Before TaXxX (continued)

# The research and development costs for the year include
approximately HK$1,770,000 (2014: HK$3,365,000) relating to
employee benefits expense for research and development activities,
which is also included in the employee benefits expense separately
disclosed above.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2014 nil).

Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration comprises payment by the Group to
Directors of the Company in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
remuneration of each Director for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014 is set out below:

FRIRAEG IR ()

# AFEEHRFRRAZRKANBIELEREETHE
R EE) A 2 8 8 & F F % 491,770,000
BT (ZZF— P4 : 336500058 7T) @ ZEK
ANMEFFALBBYIERE > EERGAMAX
q: °

R-ZB-—RAF=RA=+—0 XEEYE
BRWEARFTARBERFRERDERKS
SEER(ZE—mF - &) -

ESMe

EEMeRREAKRERARRESFEREAR
REAREMBRAREREMRE N 2R
He TREJBREZTRBEE_FT—LF
RZZT—WEF=ZA=+—HILFE M

Al

Fees e
Other emoluments: HM < -
Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Equity-settled share
option arrangements
Pension scheme contributions

e RMREDH S
s iEH 2 B B

BIRE A&

Group

&
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T T T
300
6,453
1,190
99
7,742
8,042

In the prior years, three Directors were granted share options
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above Directors’
remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE —RESFHARASERHIR
B MmAREA R BB A At 81 X R g
E—PHBERNMBRRM T - ZFHB
BEzATFEEDRELARETE  ¥E
REBHREERRER  MIARFE
MBRRCEBEFALAESTMERE
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8 EFM&m
(a) Independent non-executive Directors (@ BIFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors FAXNMTFBELIERITEET Z2EES I
during the year were as follows: T
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E—HF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Mr. Tam Chun Wan BIRE oA 100
Ms. Tse Yuet Ling, Justine AL 100
Ms. Lai May Lun REMEL 100
300
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAWMmEMEN TEILIENTES
independent non-executive Directors during the year ZME (ZZE—MFE - E|) o
(2014 nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8 EFEM&wm
(b) Executive Directors and non-executive (b) BITEERFHITES
Directors
The emoluments of each executive and non-executive BRITRIERITEENEFATEL
Director and the chief executive officer were as follows: BT
2015
—E-HE
Group
-]
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share option Total
Fee inkind contributions arrangements  remuneration

F&2E Bhe  HEHEE
#E RENNE FEHER  CBREZH et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THERL ThEx
Executive Directors; HIES
Mr. Yip Heon Ping EmTiE
Mr. Yip Heon Keung* Emafer
Mr. Han Jun BELA
(redesignated from a non-executive ~ (R=F—-FEE=-ARH
Director on 5 February 2015) RERTESRL)
Non-executive Directors; FHTES
Mr. Mah Yong Sun ShEtE(RZ2-N4F
(retired on 6 August 2014) NARBRE)
M. Li Luyi PRI+
(redesignated from an executive (R=Z-RF_AAA
Director on 5 February 2015) EH{TEEEMT)

*  Following the resignation of Ms. Li Luyi as the chief executive * FR—ZITR-ZT-AF-_ARAEFME
officer of the Company on 5 February 2015, Mr. Yip Heon Keung, ARABERHITEZBBE  ARAE
the Chairman of the Company, assumed the post of the acting FERBLEEFARRBEEEFENT
chief executive officer with effect from 5 February 2015. B2B% BT RF-_ARAHERAE
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and non-executive (b)
Directors (continued)

8. EEM&
HITEERFEHTES (&)

2014
—E—UF
Group
REHE
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowancesand Pension scheme  share option Total
Fee benefitsinkind  contributions  arrangements remuneration
e 28 BiRE NEREE
e REDHE FTEIfS 2 BRERH e @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TAT TAT THL
Executive Directors: HIEE:
Mr. Yip Heon Ping ERTis = 2523 15 581 3119
Mr. Yip Heon Keung Emats = 3192 15 581 3788
Ms. Li Luyi TRt = 738 69 28 835
= 6,453 99 1,190 7,742
Non-executive Directors; FHTES
Mr. Chen Xiaoxin (resigned BNREE(RZB—=F
0n 10 December 2013) +-A+HET) — — — — —
Mr. Mah Yong Sun BHELE — — — = =
Mr. Han Jun (appointed BELE(N-E—=4F
on 10 December 2013) +-A1+HEZT) = — - - -
— 6,453 9 1,190 7,142

FR BEEERNEXAREREML
] B & % #F (= F — PO : 30000078
L) FAR - AKRBELEFRAEFHE
MAZR=FEENME - ER
W WEMARKERRIMAREH
5z SRR AE BRI A E o

There was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2014: HK$300,000). During the year, no emoluments
have been paid by the Group to the Directors or any of
the five highest paid employees as an inducement to join,
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.
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—E-RFFR

107




Notes to the Financial Statements
ﬁﬁ%&%l‘ﬁ%‘z

31 March 2015 —E—hHF=H=1+—H

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. LEREHESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FRNAEEABRERFEEREMAE (ZE—NT
(2014: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set F:=Z)EF EMEFBE RN EXE

out in note 8 to the financial statements above. Details of the RN ESH I - FAEBK=F (=T —

remuneration of the remaining three (2014: two) non-director, ME: MB)IEEEmTEE 2ME
highest paid employees for the year were as follows: ER NN
Group
REH
2015 2014
—E—HE —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind 4 - 28 R E W H = 3,860
Equity-settled share option RESEE
arrangements BEREZ 456
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 15
4,331
The number of non-Director, highest paid employees whose MeBRATHEANZEEERSFHEE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: £ g N
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
HK$500,000 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,0007% 7T £ 1,000,0007%8 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,0007% 7T 1
2
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10. Income Tax Expense 10. FRRIRAX
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did HRAEERBEZE_T—AFR_F—N
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for FEZA=T—HILEFERNLEFSEMR
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. Taxes on profits ERELEZEREER MU EELES
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax RSz BE -  EME 2 ERE )RR T
prevailing in the countries or jurisdictions in which the Group BIEARE B K EEEITEZ B Rk A AR
operates. B 2 RITHREFTERRIE -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Current — Hong Kong: BNER — &6 -
Charge for the year FARAZH =
Current — Elsewhere: BER — Efih3th [ :
Charge for the year FRLZ 6
Deferred (note 18) EE (MH5E18) =
Total tax charged for the year FAMIEX KB 6

REMREZERERAF
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10. Income Tax EXpense (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its principal subsidiaries operate to the tax
charge at the effective tax rate, is as follows:

10. FRr {3 R BAST ()

NERRARARRETEMBRBRKEM
EREAER ORERRFEZRBAEER
ZHRAXHEBEZERTRFEZRAX N
ZHERWT

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—®-nf —T-QNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT F&T
Loss before tax bRE R AR (28,307) (41,607)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong BE B S BT E165%
profits tax rate of 16.5% (ZZE—4F : 165%)
(2014: 16.5%) FEZHIEES (2,759)
Tax credit at the Mainland China %2 R B b K E B 25.0%
statutory tax rate of 25.0% (ZZ—4F : 250%)
(2014: 25.0%) FTEZTIBEK S (6,219)
Lower applicable tax rate enjoyed AEBZF Z2REEARE
by the Group 1,801
Income not subject to tax HERBA (1)
Expenses not deductible for tax AINEF X 620
Tax losses not recognised RERRHIBEBE 6,564
Total tax charged at the Group's BRASEERBRERGE 2MIE
effective rate >R 6

Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co., Ltd. was approved to
qualify for the “Software Enterprise Scheme” for a five-year
period from 13 June 2011 to 31 December 2015 and enjoyed an
exemption of PRC corporate income tax for the first two years
and a 50% reduction for the following three years.

EREBERHMBREAERAAERITAE
R HRHELEFE ] RBMAF B
E——FRAT=ARE-_ZE—AF+=
A=1—HL RAREMEEHRZER
FEEEMEN  ARER=FFARR
S50%EEXMEHZHBER -
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11.

12.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Company

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 includes a
loss of approximately HK$24,095,000 (2014: HK$4,487,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 28(b)).

Loss Per Share Attributable to Ordinary
Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$29,707,000 (2014
HK$41,613,000), and the weighted average numbers of ordinary
shares of 767,951,438 (2014: 756,355,000) in issue during the
year.

No diluted loss per share are calculated as there were no
dilutive potential equity shares in existence as at 31 March
2015 and 2014.

1.

12.

ENFIRESBEABREFEAE
i ]

HE_Z—RAF=-A=+—BHLEFE &
RAEREARGEFRNGEEEREY
24,095,000 % Jr ( = & — /O 4 : 4,487,000 7%
TL) B RN R B 2 B 75 5k B 1R A 5 18 (Y
FE28(b)) °

FLAFIRBHRFAAENLS
Bx &5 1R

EREAEBNREAQ T BERSEFS
A JE G 6 N B 18 #929,707,00058 T ( — T —
U4 416130008 7T ) K FRNE &7 &M@
A% hn#E S 15 88767,951,438 0% ( — Z — PO 4F ¢
756,355000/% ) 5T & °

HR - ZE-—AFR_ZT-—WHF=A=+—
BYEBESERERD  RAUEAFES
Mg RS -

REMBEZERERAT
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% BERKMH
2015 Group
“E-R% N3]
Office and
computer
Land and equipment,
building in furniture and
Mainland fixtures
China Leasehold BAER Motor
REERt 2z  improvements LB R vehicles Total
THREF HENEXE BRAREE RE f@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET THET TR
Cost: BARE:
At 1 April 2014 RZE—F
MA—H 21,007
Additions NE 27
Disposals HeE (2,422)
Exchange realignment R AR 27
At 31 March 2015 W=Z-1%F
ZR=+-H 12,231

Accumulated depreciation REFEREE
and impairment:

At 1 April 2014 RZE—MmE

MA—H 11,950
Provided for the year FREE 309
Disposals HE (vip))
Exchange realignment L 17
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1%

=A=t+-H
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-hfF

ZA=1-H
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. 1% - BE R % (@)

2014 Group
—T-MF 7N
Office and
computer
equipment,
Land and fumiture and
building in fixtures
Mainland China Leasehold RRER
IREEREZ  improvements SR~ Motor vehicles Total
T RkEF HENEEE BMREE nE @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTET THET THT FTHT
Cost: PAE :
At 1 April 2013 RZZ—=F
mA—A 1,385 984 13,290 6,570 22,229
Additions NE — 850 218 — 1,068
Disposals HE = — (1,055) (1,240) (2,295)
Exchange realignment AR — (14) 5 14 5
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—ME
ZR=1-H 1,385 1,820 12,458 5,344 21,007
Accumulated depreciation ZEAMERAE
and impairment:
At 1 April 2013 W-B-—=%
mA—H 281 840 12,548 4,653 18,322
Provided for the year EREE 35 271 457 805 1,568
Disposals HE = — (1,055) (1,201) (2,256)
Exchange realignment B 5B = ®) — 5 —
At 31 March 2014 AZF—[MF
=A=+—H 316 1,106 11,950 4,262 17,634
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME
—A=t+—H 1,069 714 508 1,082 3373

AEEHEEFUPRBEORE - LR
A3

The Group's leasehold building is held under a medium term
lease and is situated in Mainland China.

REMBEZERERAT
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14. Investment Property 14. #EME
Group
rE
2015 2014
—E-EHfF —FE—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 1 April MRImA—AH 4,490
Fair value adjustment NEBEAE
(notes 5 and 7) (MIsE5R7) 284
Exchange realignment ME 3 R B )
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,767

The Group's investment property is held under a long term
lease and its address is F1 BIJb R SR & R B PIONA T 72,3655
255% 127 E 18 5807 = (Unit 807, Level 7, Entrance 1, Building
25, No. Yi 36, Dongzhimenwai Street, Dongcheng District,
Beijing, the PRC, for identification purpose only) which is a
residential unit.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 March
2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, an independent firm of professional qualified valuers,
not connected to the Group who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived
at by using direct comparison method by making reference to
the comparable properties on a price per square meter basis
using market data which is publicly available. The Group has
determined that the highest and best use of the investment
property at 31 March 2015 would be for rental purpose. For
strategic reasons, the property is not being used in this manner.

At each financial year end the Directors assess property
valuations movements when compared to the prior year
valuation report.

AEEREBRPBOFECRENE - &
it A B R R RE PN 236
BB 25k B7E1E T80/ = - AEEEE
2z A& -

AEBEZREMERTEBRITLENMGER
FHARRAR (REANEEYEBY B
VRERBXMGEEM  BESBEEEER
T ERLEANRUYREETIEZ
RBINR_ZF-—AF=A=+—HEMR-
FRGMENDRAERLBEL2EALER
W RAAHEHZmSBIEFTERH
ZBYOAREEET AKERS  N=
T-AF=A=1+—8B REVEZERS
ReERZREEERR AR RBIER
CRMELREL AR -

REMRERR  EEYWH L —FEHE
B2 PR BB BT -
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14. Investment Property (continued) 14. REYE (®)

Fair value adjustment of the investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. All gains or
losses recognised in the consolidated profit or loss for the year
are arisen from the property held at the end of the reporting
period. There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

BREWEZ A TFEEARDINGEAERR
BR - FARGEBETHERZHMA Kt
HEROBERNBERREBEZINEEL -
FTARZEETNER EFEMRR -

Details of the Group's investment property and information R-ZZE—RAF=A=+—H AEEKE
about the fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2015 are as follows: %%z FERBEATEESREBCE
BT
Fair value at
31 March
2015
R-E—HE
=A=+—H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZRAEEE —E =g B=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ OOO
FET FHET FAT FAT
Investment property in Beijing A1t R 2 & & W = 4,367 —
Fair value at
31 March
2014
RZZE—HF
=HA=+—H” Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZANTEE — g FB F=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAIT FAIT FATT
Investment property in Beijing 71t = 2 & & W 4,767 — 4,767 —
During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, there were HEZZ ﬁi&_ T —NE=A=+—
no transfer of fair value measurements between Level 1 and HIEFE F—EHE_E2HETLIEE

Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3.

As at 31 March 2015, the investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,367,000 was pledged as
security for a loan granted to the Group by an independent
third party (note 25).

7/\¥Ffﬁ,zp+i VR EE A S E L E
=[E-

RZE—RF=A=+—"H ' EEEYD
43670008 T2 W EWEC KT - EAB
VYEZFRAEBRRHER ZER (KT
25) °
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The movements of impairment allowances on due from
subsidiaries are as follows:

15. Interests in Subsidiaries 15. RBLARZER
company
¥ /N
2015 2014
—ET-EHfF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LIRS AR A 27,445 27,445
Impairment allowances B (27,445) (27,445)
Due from subsidiaries JE US B BB A B FRIE 382,290
Impairment allowances VERIEREL:] (366,405)
15,885
Due to subsidiaries IRl INGIE (1,828)

KB AR KRB RERBEEHNT

2015
—E-RF
HK$'000

REH
B
PR A BT W [ i 38 2 TR

At the beginning of the year
Impairment allowances
Amounts written off as uncollectible

366,405
21,362

(387,767)

2014
—E—mEF
HK$'000
FHET

366,405

366,405
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15. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 15. RIBBELRIZH & (&)
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free BB AR REAERE Tt ERE
and will not be repayable within the next twelve months from ARG B RBEARK T ZE A AEBR -

the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the management assessed the RZE—RAFR-_ZE—WNF=A=1+—
recoverable amounts of the interests in subsidiaries after H BEEBLEENEBARQRZERL
considering profitability, cash flow position, financial position, EEREURN « IR « Azt L% E
forecast business development and future prospects of the &;K;Kgu =B B A Rl 2 Al Y
subsidiaries. Based on this assessment, the Directors consider S5 BB WIETE  BEERAERKE
that the carrying amounts of interests in subsidiaries net of _Tﬁé @ IREENRE BRBEREE
impairment losses recognised approximate to their recoverable BEHEHATW O S FEES

amounts.

REMERERERAA
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15. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 15. RIMBARZHE @)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 N—_E—RFE=A=+—H AQAxE
March 2015 are as follows: HMEARZFFIBWT
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued of equity
registrationand  ordinary share/ attributable to
operations registered capital the Company
Name MR EME  ERTEER/ ARQFEL Principal activities
£ EENYE HIMERZEE EREIHR TEEK
(2015 and 2014)
(ZE-RER
—E-MNF)
Prosten (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$21,025 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong 21025% 7T REER
RERLHE /BB
Prosten Technology Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
REMEER A A BB 1,000,000/ 7T REER
Prolink Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$5 100 Investment holding
AR AR A A BB 5B REER
Worldly Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Investment holding
Ma AR R N 10,0007 7T REER
Welltop Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
BEREFR A A e 1,000/ 7T REER
Prosten Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000 100 Provision of wireless mobile
RESBBAS (LE)BRRA HE/ R E R 35000003 ¢ value-added services
REELY B L E RS
Unison Networking Services (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd.*  PRC/Mainland China US$1,800,000 100 Provision of wireless mobile
HIEREESTRE (L8)BRAR FE /B A 1,800,000 7T value-added services
REEGHELERE
Beijing Xin Tong Le Sou Technology Co Ltd.* PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 Provision of wireless mobile
TR EREEREERA R FE/RERE  AR1,0000007T value-added services
REEGHELERE
S Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC Law. * BIBERBUERAMINEBEDE -
# Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise. # EftzFIEERE -
Except for Prosten (BVI) Limited, all other subsidiaries are B Prosten (BVI) Limited sl - B & E fth Bt B &
indirectly held by the Company. AIHBEARQRREERE -
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15.

16.

17.

—HFE=A=1+—H

Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Available-for-sale Investments

15.

16.

Club debentures, at cost SES  BKRA

REBLRZER (@)
ERINAESR HI%%&’Q“Z!SEJ*Z%
BAERNAEEEEFECEES D 2K
NAIMBEART - EERE - ﬁIJHj/HJ‘MﬁJ%
RAEIZFBERHSRERARILE
AftHERE
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-HE —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
831

As at the end of the reporting period, club debentures were
stated at cost as the Directors are of the opinion that their fair

BM&&E'EHHEE EMESFEAANIE  RE
SAFEEGHZAEBERKN  EFR
7"% FEEREE

values cannot be measured reliably because the range of ASETE - AEEEER
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant. The Group ’TﬁHﬂKHj%EZ% E% °
does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.
Goodwill 177. 58
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—E-HF —mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cost: R
At 31 March R=A=+—H 188
Accumulated impairment losses: 2R ERFA :
At 31 March W=A=+—H” (188)
Carrying amounts: BREE :
At 31 March R=A=+—H —

REMBEZERERAT
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18. Deferred Tax 18. iEERIA
The movements in deferred tax asset and liability during the BREHBEERBERFAZEEHIT :

year are as follows:

Deferred tax asset ELEBBEEE
Deferred tax asset arising from losses available for offsetting Al BRI SH R R E R R R Al 2 BB P E &
against future taxable profits. LRI & EE o
Group
&
2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHEIT
At 1 April RmA—H 1,39
Deferred tax credited to profit or FAFTABRERZELERIE
loss during the year (note 10) (F3%10) =
Exchange realignment BE 5, 53 B ()
At 31 March R=A=+—8 1,394
Deferred tax liability BELERESE
Deferred tax liability related to withholding taxes of unremitted R ARRHE B A 2 TR 2 mAEF B A E -
earnings.
Group
&
2015 2014
—F-1%F —TmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 April RUA—HB 499
Exchange realignment PE 57, 58 & —
At 31 March R=A=+—H 499

Prosten Technology Holdings Limited
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18.

19.

Deferred TaXx (continued)

Deferred tax liability (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the respective jurisdictions of the
foreign investors.

For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated after 1 January 2008.

18.

i SER IR ()

EEB A S (#)
REFBEZEXMAEHE - ARRPERA
MR 2 IEERABIMEEET IR 2K
BHBI0%ENR - BEEREA_FTTN
F-A—HBEN WEAR_-_FTZTLF
TZA=+t—RRZAEM - WhEABE
HEZBINCEEMBRIERRR B R
fie%y - RIRTRE R MEMNEE 2 TRHIBL K o

REBZERRER5% - At - AEBRA
AR BEAMK BRI -FTN
F-A—BREEZRMND IR R
B -

Trade Receivables 19. FEU AR R
Group
rE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT
Trade receivables, gross JE W BR SR 4B 5R 6,311
Impairment allowances BB (1,114)
Trade receivables, net FEURBR FOF 5 5,197

The Group's trade receivables, which generally have credit
terms of one month to three months (2014: one month to three
months) pursuant to the provisions of the relevant contracts,
are recognised based on services rendered and carried at the
original invoice amount, and an estimate of impairment of
trade receivables is made and deducted when collection of the
full amount is no longer probable.

REEBEANZIRE  AREZEUWER
—RABE-EAZE=EA(ZF—MOF:
—EAE=ER)ZEFEY EBURERE
RERENRE TUARRLZEHERS
BSIRR - WA A] BE T RE 2 B D I 4 L
WRRBORE T - I T IAFARR ©
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19. Trade Receivables (continued) 19. BUKIR X (&)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has significant RBEHR  KEBGFEEEREDREER
concentration of credit risk as approximately 81% (2014: 76%) b BREALN%(—ZFE—E : 76%) 2
of the balance represented a receivable from a customer with LR ERNTFREEMSZKERBERZEREZ
the largest trade receivable at the year end. The trade RE - ANFERAAEFEMER_Z—RF
receivables balances as at 31 March 2015 contributed by the A=+ —HZEWRERE R100%(=
five largest customers of the year was 100% (2014: 95%). T —PO4F : 95%) o A EFEAZESIERE
Concentration of credit risk is managed by control over credit FZzEZEHEREREZERK - BUWERXR
term over individual customer. Trade receivables are unsecured REEBRDEE -

and non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables, net of N & B e UK BR B0 (A5 F0 B Rl B B E AR 1B
impairment allowances, based on the month in which the RERE A D) ZREDITWT :
services were rendered, is as follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E—EHF —E-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Within 3 months =EAR 3,433
4 to 6 months e S 922
7 to 12 months tE=+=-@A 670
Over 1 year tBiE—F 172
Trade receivables, net FEUR AR FOF 58 5,197
The movements in the Group's impairment allowances of trade AEBRWEREFBRERE 2 ZHNT -
receivables are as follows:
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-—HF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1 April REA—H 1,224
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRERREERE (K:E7) 1,348
Amount written off as uncollectible ] Uk 1B i s 2 SR IE (1,459)
Exchange realignment bE o 28 1
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,114
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19.

19. Trade Receivables (continued) B U AR 3% i)

The above allowances for impairment of trade receivables are
allowances for individually impaired trade receivables with
carrying amounts before allowances of approximately
HK$1,337,000 (2014: HK$1,114,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables are considered to be less likely to recover by
management after considering the credit quality of those
individual customers based on their settlement history:.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired, based on the due date, is as follows:

FHl R 2 BEREE A E R ERE
JEWERSIEL v Bl - B ER 2 REE
%) 51,337,000/ 7t ( —Z — P 4F : 1,114,000
BIL)  c KERZZFERNEFPERN BT
BB EEERRE  BEEERATAH
BE UL [0l % &5 B Bl B R (B FE UK BR 3K »

PR BB RE 2 245 & YR R I 2
HIH 2 BRE DTN

Not yet past due 3 7 %80 HA
Past due but not impaired: EHAE R E -

1 to 3 months past due
4 to 6 months past due
7 to 12 months past due

Past due for over 1 year B R—F

Eaf—==EA
Eam=EREA
EaftE+ @A

Trade receivables, net JE UK BR 3OS RE

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T T
1,208
2,607
775
435
172
5,197

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good repayment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of
the opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

EAEME R EN R KRR EAEEE
RIFEFCBENBIEFP AR - RIFNE
R BEEZRR OANZATHEHKZEEREE
EVEBAEY  ANBEANZHEYND -
WHARZSHERIERERE -

AEBYERZSERTE TN ER RN
EHEMEENEEE
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20. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 20 B EHRIE - §T& R X it FE Uit

Receivables mIA
Group Company
E b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-FHF —T—NMFE ZZEB-HF —TOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET FHET FHET
Prepayments SENNE ] 200
Deposits and 5] & M H A fE R SR IR
other receivables —
200
Less: Current portion B mENEE S (200)
Non-current portion IERBEB D —
21. Due to Directors 21. BRI EEZRIEA
Amounts due to Directors are unsecured, non-interest bearing ERNES s REABEET T ERER
and repayable on demand. LR ER o
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22. cash and Ccash Equivalents and Pledged 22. & R A& S EMRCIE MW

Deposits

2015
—E-HE
HK$°000
FExT
Cash and bank balances R4 RR1T45 64
Time deposits JE HiTF K

Less: Pledged time deposits & : BtiR1T{= & & 7
for banking facilities 2 E BT

Cash and cash equivalents R4 &S ZEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits held by subsidiaries of the Company
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$1,614,000
(2014: HK$11,159,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits were made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The deposits at banks are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

At 31 March 2014, pledged deposits represent deposits
pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to the Group.
The pledged deposit was released during the year ended 31
March 2015.

=3
Company
KAF
2014 2015 2014
—E-NF ZT—HFE —ET—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FH&IT

10,075 4
2,745 —

12,820 4

(250) —

12,570 4

ARBMBARRREHRAARE
BZRERBITEBRNANRERAERD A
1,614,000 % 7T ( — & — M@ £F : 11,159,000 %
L) ARBTATERABRASEMES
HERE T B A 2 SNEEIRIRS] - AR
E EERNEEEMRE  AREEEE
BERBETINERZGEHZRITHAR
BRMAEMER -

RITFEARRBEEBRITERNREE 2F
BHERFAE - EHEHERNBERSH—
FEZAATE BIAEEERZAS
FEME - WIKE 2 R HIE HFE A =X
AR MIRITZERFRRN AL BETR
FEEREAGEERFZRIT -

RZZE-—NF=A=+—0 BEFER
EEERTRITURSRE T AEE ZRTT
EERE CEREFERBEE_T—1
F=ZA=+—RHILFEXREER -

REMREZERERAF

g 10




Notes to the Financial Statements
IR R MR E

31March 2015 —E—RF=A=+—H

23. Trade Payables 23. EFTIER
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the AREBREBRERK AN ZEMNERERR
month in which the services were rendered, is as follows: DWW
Group
rEH
2015 2014
—E-EHF —ZT—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TE T
Within 3 months =R®AR 50
410 6 months N EPE 59
7 to 12 months +tE=+ =@ A 3,582
Over 1 year B im—F 6,261
9,952
24. Other Payables and Accruals 24. RtifEFRIE R EHRIE
Group Company
AEE b NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-HF C—THmF =B-EF —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET TAT
Other payables H {th B4 FRIE 3,487 3,798 —
Accruals FE 5t /I8 8,280 7,657 1,600

11,767 11,455 1,600
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25. Interest-Bearing Borrowing, Secured 25 EEMHEEESE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had a secured borrowing with NRZE—FRAF=A=+—H XcEEEEK
remaining balance of approximately HK$1,125,000 which is HEE 754411250008 7T © JTHHER
secured by the Group’s investment property with carrying M {8 494,367,000/ T 2 NE B R E Y EAF
amount of approximately HK$4,367,000 (note 14). The secured ER(HTFE14) - sz BRI EEZ F 585%
borrowing is interest bearing at 8.5% per annum and repayable STERER—FRNEER - Hi8 ZEEE
within one year. The borrowing was fully settled subsequently. EREEE o

26. Share Capital

26. lg &
Number of
shares Amounts
R & B k-
‘000 HK$'000
TR T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary Shares: LB
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014, RZZE—=FMAH—H -
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 —E-NE=A=+—H -
— HK$0.10 each —E-NHFEFMA—B K
—E—RF=A=+—H
— EBREECIOE T 2,500,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 RZZE—=FMW™A—H -
and 1 April 2014 —E-mOF=A=t—HBRK
—E—NHEMA—AR 756,355 75,635
Exercise of share options TR g R i 24,750 2,475
Placing of new shares (Note a) fic & A% (P sEa) 15,000 1,500
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—HEF=HA=+—H 796,105 79,610
Note: B
(@  On 23 January 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement (@) RZZE—AF—A=+=H  AQaHEH—-F
with a placing agent, an independent third party. On 30 January 2015, MERE(BLE=F)IVEEHR L&
the placing was completed. Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the EHER=_ZE—AF—A=+HZEK - BE
Company issued a total of 15,000,000 ordinary shares with par value REWZE  ARQRIEER027B T2 EIRE
of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.27 each. The issued share capital 714 #£15000,000 A% &F A% E1E0.01 78 T 2 % 38
of the Company was thus increased from HK$78,110,500 to f& o ANA B B 217N A M B378,110,5007%8 T
HK$79,610,500. The excess of the placement proceeds over the EINZE79,61050078 7T © BLE F I8 2 Fi5 5IE
nominal value of share capital issued was credited as share BHAMBRITRAEEZ Z8E ARIIERSG
premium. (B o
REMNFEERERAR
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27. Share Option Schemes 27. FRBR TR

The Company operates a share option scheme which is
currently in force and effect for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The Company’s
original share option scheme was approved by the
shareholders on 7 March 2000 (the “2000 Scheme”), and was
terminated and replaced by a share option scheme approved
by the shareholders on 9 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”). The
2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by a new share
option scheme approved by the shareholders on 5 August 2011
(the “New Scheme”). The options granted under the 2000
Scheme, which were not exercised or terminated or expired
previously, became expired on 21 August 2011.

A summary of the share option schemes is set out below:

(@) 2002 scheme

The 2002 Scheme became effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 23 April 2002. Eligible participants
of the 2002 Scheme include all directors and employees
of the Group, suppliers, customers, consultants who
provided services to the Group, shareholders of the
subsidiaries of the Group and joint venture partners.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their sole
discretion, grant to any eligible participants options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company. The
exercise period of the options granted is determinable by
the Directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends in any event not later than 10 years from
the respective date when the share options are granted,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The 2002 Scheme was terminated and replaced by the
New Scheme with effect from 5 August 2011. The options
granted under the 2002 Scheme remain exercisable
within their respective exercise periods.

AAEZREBATARR AR N Z BRER
g BEEEHBREREAEEZKINLE
EHERZEER2EE - RER_ZE
TE=ZRFEtBE#EZ AR RRAERES
(=T F8]) ERIEREBRER
:%%:iEHHEM&Z—E%%%ﬁ
(=2 =_FxE8 ) BR - —T=F
ﬁ%e%t&ﬁhim_iffiﬂﬂﬂ
B #bfE 2 —ER B ER 8 ([#E08]) B
R-BE—FSTTFFEARLERBAR
TESKRIEKERZBREER =S ——
FNA=+—HE® °

RIS 2RI

(@ =ZZ2_F:t8
SET_FHEE-PT_FmA-
+=BABRER  AY+F -

—77

“FFHIHCAERSEERELARE
BFREEENESR - HHER TP -
RASERFRBZER - AEEH

BRRZEREAELEBMH - RIE
—TT_FEE EFAEERBR
EREMAER2EER L BERE -

ARBARNR 2 LB - FIRERE
ZITEHRHESET  IRNETH

BH®RFAS  RETABERTRER
REF BB E S HEEE B HET+
FREm - EASIRAR L 2GR
R —ZT_FFHEER_F——F
NA R B&IERAFG SRR - RIB
T _FEAREZBRERES
BITEHRIDAIITE
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(b) New Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5
August 2011 (the “2011 AGM"), an ordinary resolution
was passed by the shareholders to approve and adopt
the New Scheme in place of the 2002 Scheme.

The New Scheme became effective for a period of 10
years commencing on 10 August 2011. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include all directors and
employees of the Group, suppliers, customers,
consultants who provided services to the Group,
shareholders of the subsidiaries of the Group and joint
venture partners. Under the New Scheme, the Directors
may, at their sole discretion, grant to any eligible
participants options to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company at the highest of (i) the closing price of
shares of the Company on GEM as stated in the
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company on GEM as stated in the Exchange's daily
guotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share. The offer of a
grant of options may be accepted within 21 days from
the date of the offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option. The
exercise period of the options granted is determinable by
the Directors, which commences after the date of offer
with a certain vesting period and ends in any event not
later than 10 years from the respective date when the
share options are granted, subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the
2011 AGM.

27. MERRHEE B ()

(b)

et

EARARAR_T——F/\AREAET
ZBRBFAE(ZF——FEKR
BEAG) L KRAB-BER
RFEER - HUE MR ET B AR =

T FiEtE -

Mg E T —FNAATHRAK
£ RBTF - B zAaERS
HEQRASEMEEZNES - H#
&R BF  RAKERURE 2B
B AEEHRBARZRREREED
ERH - REFAE EEZV2ED
BREREAAGERSEERBBR
B NERIRBEORE BERBRME
BmER LMIIERIER 2 AR R
HIE  NBERBAORL AHA
AR5 B EHRER LHAIIAR
REBRMDEBIRRZ FHRTE &
(ARRBRNEBEZER(UEREH
RE)RBARAZEBIR - ZAE
HEREENOZHR AR A BEST
—tT—BR - BEAMRHERERAX
NREBAREBIVET - R L BRE
ZITEHRHEFETE YREBHH
Hikmn  YEETRBY  REE
AER TREANE L EREZ ZA
B8 B B T FEm - R IEATR
LEZ RSP ARIR ©

RITEAREF 5T 8§ 2 A A FE X
RERF R Aok BT 2 IR0 488K - EBRA
HERBE_T——FRRAEFKE
[ITRHRZARBDEITRMDZ10% °
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued)
(b) New Scheme (continued) (b)

27. FERR R B (@)
HEtE (|)

The maximum number of shares to be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the relevant class of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company'’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive Directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital and with
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company'’s shareholders.
The New Scheme does not provide for any minimum
period for holding of options or any performance target
before exercise of options.

RITERBF T 8 R AN KB Z A E
i R AR BIPT IR b AL RTTE 2 P
BRARBEITE 2 BRERKTEH M
Bz &x=8E AT FBEE
TR EEIT AR AAE BERBR D
30% °

PEfR+ — & A B Al &% TR E A
ZREBHERS 2 BRI E - ERENR
NERREBFRAER - THREBAKRR
AR AR ETRDZ21% - &
TEEMRELBUIFATESTZBR
REfim BB R R R AN 20.1% & A2 (B 1|
1500000078 7T * W 7E FE L EAR QA
BCRHLE - St B L EREEFFA
Bl ZEMRAITERBBRERN 2
“EBRF -
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BB HEET B ()
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BB AEN T EE T4 A AR S s A IR
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. A LIREZEF -
The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 FRN - RBE_SZ-_FFEEHFAE 2
Scheme and the New Scheme during the year: RITEEREDT :
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE—F
Number of Number of
shares shares
Weighted issuable Weighted issuable
average under the average under the
exercise options exercise options
price REBRE price  RIRMEEARRE
IR 15 AT Z InE g Al 1T 2
TEE BHEE 1T1E(E iz n &5 B
HKS$ per share ‘000  HKS$ per share ‘000
BT (ER) T & BT (FR) T
At 1 April REA—H 59,310 0.38 31,790
Granted during the year R H — 0.17 *28,000
Cancelled during the year 4 (A 5% §H (10,000) — —
Exercised during the year 4 R1T{E #(24,750) — —
Lapsed during the year F KM ((EWAD)) 0.48 (480)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H g 5,850 0.28 59,310
& Total consideration of HK$6 was received for the share options @ R_E—=F+_ARBEHTETRLEZ
granted on 5 December 2013 that enable the grantees to subscribe EREEWREAREHET  EABEATR
for up to 28,000,000 shares of the Company under the New Scheme. i £% % 28 000,000/ A~ A &l i 15 ©
# Total exercise monies of HK$268,000 was received for the exercise # B =TT =52 174524000005 28 A
of 2,400,000 share options of the Company under the 2002 Scheme. 7] B B3 B g R 48 17 {85 2K 78 268,000 7T ©

RYZFTET & - 771£22,350,00010 A8 A 78 A

Total exercise monies of HK$3,686,250 was received for the exercise PR .
. B T 4877 8 3K JB 3,686,250/ 7T ©

of 22,350,000 share options of the Company under the New Scheme.

REMREZERERAF
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. BB B ()
The exercise prices, exercise periods and number of shares RI|EH R BRBE-_ZZE _FH2EH
issuable in respect of the share options outstanding under the B ZEATEERERSBZITEE - 17
2002 Scheme and the New Scheme as at the end of the EHAR RATEHT 2 RHOBB AT -

reporting period are as follows:

2015
—E—FHEF
Number of shares
issuable under the options
‘000 EXxercise price*
RIBBRETRITZ  HKS per share
BRHEE 1TfEE* Exercise period
T B (8RK) 1THREHARR

3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EEN\FNA=HEZ=-Z-N\FWMAB=H
3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EEN\FAA=HEZ-ZZE-N\FXAZH
27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023

—E—=—HE=A-t+tHBE-—E-=5=H=+15,H
5 December 2013 to 4 December 2023
—E-—FE+-_AREHE-E-=F+=-HM@EA
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27. Share Option Schemes (continued) 27. MERRHEE B ()
2014
—ZT—%F

Number of shares
issuable under the options
‘000 Exercise price*
RIRMERE R 1T 2 HK$ per share

DB 1T{EE* Exercise period
T BT (F%) 1T EARR
300 0.100 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014
—EENFE=A -+ NBHE-ZZE—WNF=H=-+HH

700 0.170 10 May 2006 t0 9 May 2016
—EERFRATHE-_E—X"FRANE

9,200 0.410 3 April 2008 to 2 April 2018
—EENFNA=HE_ZT—/\FWMA_H

2,000 0.100 24 June 2005 to 23 June 2015
T EEREANATHNBEE-_ZE—RAFAAA-1+=H

1,000 0.380 29 June 2006 to 28 June 2016
—EERFEFRNATNABE_ZE—AR"EA~AA=-1+NH

5,000 0.396 1 October 2008 to 5 July 2017
—EENF+A—HE_ZE—tFtHAAH

200 0.417 3 June 2008 to 2 June 2018
—EENENAZHE_ZT—N\EFEXA-H

5,560 0.660 9 February 2010 to 8 February 2020
—E-ZETF_ANAE_ZE-_FTF_ANH

4,550 0.270 23 November 2010 to 22 November 2020
—E—ZEF+—A-+=ZHE-_E-_ZTF+—HA=-+=H

2,800 0.162 27 March 2013 to 26 March 2023
—E-—=F=—A-t+tBAE-E-_=F=HA=+/H

28,000 0.165 5 December 2013 to 4 December 2023

—E—=F+_-_ARBHE-_ZE-_=F+_-HAMH

59,310
e The exercise prices of the share options are subject to adjustments * R AR RETT L B Al AR IR IR KA R BT AR
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the RAIARAS AR E A SRV B T LA -

Company's share capital.

REMERERERAA
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27. BB B ()

REZE-_Z—RAF=A=1+—HLFEL
ERHBERE RBEE-_Z—HF=A=
+—RALEFERHZEREZAFEEY
2%2,813,000;‘%7% HE-_Z—NF=A=+
—BUlEFEZRAEZREMEAKER
Wﬁ@i@zmtf@éﬁﬁ%;ﬁzﬁ%ﬂx%%ﬁim,\,Z’J
7326300078 70 (—Z— P4 : 246900078 7T ) °

27. Share Option Schemes (continued)

No share options were granted for the year ended 31 March
2015. The fair value of share options granted for the year ended
31 March 2014 was approximately HK$2,813,000. The total
equity-settled share option expense of approximately
HK$268,000 (2014: HK$2,469,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during REE-_E—NEF=F=1t—HItFE®
the year ended 31 March 2014 was estimated as at the date of A Eg*;ﬁ,% 5 R RE 2 A ‘?MF{ETJ%%

grant, with reference to the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using a binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the

BYAEREXRMGEMPEFGHEERA
3&??21&@@??1_Iﬁiﬂﬂf“*{ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁx
HBEHEETEE YA RZRSEREZ
B GR R EE - TRINEZEA RS
AE#

inputs to the model used:

Share options

granted on

5 December 2013

R-ZE—=F

+ —RAA

e quniwdi 1 g3

Dividend yield (%) Ji% 22 (%) 0.0%
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 100.57%
Historical volatility (%) F EE/)*i 1 (%) 100.57%
Risk-free interest rate (%) % 1 2K (%) 2.2%
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) ﬂﬂ*%iiﬁjﬂxﬁ (BT (8)) 0.163

E‘EHJ%/BZ%&Bﬁ%ﬁ]‘“r&*&&fﬂmTﬂﬁﬂ'?&Xt
2o N EEERARAN -

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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27.

28.

Share Option Schemes (continued)

For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other
than employees, the Group has rebutted the presumption that
the fair values of the services received can be estimated
reliably as in the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the
services cannot be reliably measured. Accordingly, the Group
measured the services received from these parties, with
reference to the fair values of the share options granted using
the binomial option pricing model, at the date these parties
rendered related services to the Group.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
aggregated outstanding share options that enable the grantees
to subscribe for up to 5,850,000 (2014: 59,310,000) shares in
the Company under the 2002 Scheme and the New Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 5,850,000 (2014: 59,310,000) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$585,000 (2014: HK$5,931,000) and share premium of
HK$479,500 (2014: HK$10,605,100).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had aggregate outstanding share options that enable
the grantees to subscribe for up to 400,000 shares under the
2002 Scheme and 4,150,000 shares under the New Scheme,
the underlying shares in respect of which represented
approximately 0.05% and 0.52%, respectively, of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

Reserves

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, a
portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are registered in the PRC has been transferred to the
statutory reserve fund which is restricted as to use.

27.

28.

MR EsS @)

SEBAINZ BT 2 AR EE RIAK
MRRNZNFME > HREFAR/RB 2
REBEWRETEMGTE - REEDH
BRERB 2 A FEEREAFAETZR
R AW "EEREETAAKEEHR
EERBER 2REM _BAARREEE
BEABGHLZERNBRIEZATEE - &
BERZEFAMOER 2R -

AAERTEERSEIAMKLEREZ
H%E -

RBEHR E_TT _F:F8 RF1E
T+ ANR A28 AR 1T R AR R AR
A A 37 B8 &% 25,850,000 f% ( — & — Py 4 :
59,310,000 % ) A" A &l &1 » R iE A A 7]38
BrZBRANER  2EITEZSHNATERE
P 42 5 28 B 3% 775,850,000 A% ( = T — U £F ¢
59,310,000 % ) A /» &) RE 4N I 8 %~ BEIMIK
7K585,0007% 70 ( = & — P4 £ : 5,931,000 /8
T ) B B AD %5 (B 479,500 7T (= & — PO 4 :
10,605,100 7T ) °

RZEVHERRENLEBER  RE_ZZT
—FEERFEE KRR ZMATE
BERELAEFARATRES I ARS
400,000 & A% 17 K2.4,150,000 & % 15+ H BT 3%
EZ2HBRDEARRRNE BEETRMD
2 B9 £0.05% 2 0.52% °

fos {7

@ #*%£H
AEERAEERBEFREZFHES
BRHESHEARNGARRESHRE
5l o

RIBEFBERBREG AL - AERER
PEGEMZMBRAR &2 BN EE
BRELEREES  BEFRIAR
TyBRH -
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28. Reserves (continued) 28. &l (&)
(b) Company (b) &XAT
Share Share
premium option Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
B EER BRERE 2 ER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAIT FAIT FAT
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=F1NAH—H 372,468 7,793 (441,217) (60,956)
Loss and total comprehensive FABBELZEMAX
expense for the year k] = = (4,487) (4,487)
Equity-settled share option PATE & 45 B 2 B e
arrangements 2 = 2,469 — 2,469
Transfer of share option 8 R R R e B
reserve on the forfeited BRI
share options — (221) 221 —
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—MmF
1 April 2014 =A=+—-8%
—E-NFNA—H 372,468 10,041 (445,483) (62,974)
Loss and total comprehensive FABELRZERAY
expense for the year Fk = = (24,095) (24,095)
Equity-settled share option DAl & i 8 2 e
arrangements ZHE — 268 — 268
Transfer of share option B U A R e
reserve on the forfeited BRERE
share options — (7,336) 7,336 —
Exercise of share options 111 RS AR 3,841 (2,362) — 1,479
Placement of new shares e & 3% 2,550 — — 2,550
Expenses on issue of new shares 25773 f& 2 i % (231) — = (231)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—AF
ZA=+—8H 378,628 611 (462,242) (83,003)
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28. Reserves (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

0]

(if)

(iii)

Under the Companies Law (2001 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to its shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, and will be
transferred to accumulated losses should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

28. f# W (&)

(b) E2ATF (&)

0]

(i

(iih)

REASHESRFNE(ZTT—
FRETAR) KRR Z i E
BE—Hﬁ“/)E?Hxﬁ \ﬁf%f%

BERNREERE AR
B 153@5’\5%%?‘ = 'J
HZ @7 -

iy
ﬂ

/

—RAFER-_T—NFE=
—H BERBEALADQF
T Sk PR o

ﬁl\l\l
314-@31

%%%%%a%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%
TEBREZAFEE  F15
%F%WW%W&M%@M%
MRANKRHZ B ERER
%hﬂﬁ@%h%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ
L%¢kﬁ@f$ ki&e
ﬁﬁ%k%?ﬁjﬁaW%L
BERFERE -

(c) Dividends © ®E
The Board does not recommend the payment of any EEE T ERREE_ZE—H1F= H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil). =+—H Lti&ﬂ[& BEAEMKRE(ZZ
—O&E : fE) o
REMNEERBRAT
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29. Commitments 29. KifE
(a) Operating lease arrangements (a) KEHEZH
The Group leases its office properties under operating REBREBELLSHERHHE G Hilt
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated NEYEHE - WEZHELIEREEZ AR
for terms ranging from one to three years (2014: one to —E=FFF(ZE—WF: —E=
three years). F)o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total )5 G AR - AEBEIEE A BUELE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable A& BRLA T BRI H 7 R &I
operating leases falling due as follows: iﬂ EfNREEIT
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-HE —E—NF
HK$‘000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Land and buildings: THRAETF -
Within one year —F R 3,174
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF
(BEEEME) 936
4,110
The Company has no operating lease arrangement at the AARRBERRY EEMLEEHEE
end of the reporting period (2014: nil). ZH(ZZ—HF : ) -
(b) cCapital commitments (b) EAREE
The Group and the Company has no significant capital A& B K AR R B s B AR I £ (1]
commitment at the end of the reporting period (2014: nil). BREAREE(ZZ—HF - &) o
30. Related Party Transactions 30 FREALEEZS
Details of compensation of key management personnel of the EEAAEEEZZETEAB ZWMFEERR
Group are included in note 8 to the financial statements which B 75 R R MO8 - s E RN I T A B
do not constitute connected transactions or continuing WMETHAZAERZHFEBERS ©

connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
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31. Financial Instruments by Category 1. BiEhsiszce&mTIT A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REHR SEERITEZEEAN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial assets cREE
Group Company
RE P NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—NF ZB-HE —ZT—NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TAT FHET FAT
Loans and receivables: BEXRRERRE :
Financial assets included FFARKMBAR 2
in investments REZEMEE
in subsidiaries (note 15) (B¥sE15) 15,885
Trade receivables FE W BR 3k =
Financial assets included T AGT & K E b fE UK
in deposits and other REZESBREE
receivables (note 20) (Bt 5E20) =
Pledged deposits B IRF R =
Cash and cash equivalents 4 RRE&ZEY 4
15,889
Available-for-sale AHHERE :
investments:
Available-for-sale AHHERE
investments —
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31. Financial Instruments by Category 31. EENISZE&MTH @)

(continued)
Financial liabilities cWMAas
Group Company
RE ¥ NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—FF Z—T-MNMF ZB-FHF —TNEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FTHxT FHET
Financial liabilities REBHERARTIERZ
at amortised cost: SRAE:
Financial liabilities included st AR B A7 2
in investments HEZERBE
in subsidiaries (note 15) (BFsE15) — 1,828
Trade payables FEAS BR 3K 9,713 —
Financial liabilities included &+ A Eth & {5 3018 &
in other payables JEETFRIB 2 & B
and accruals =L 9,361 1,600
Due to Directors ENES ZIE 2,000 —
Interest-bearing borrowing it EEE 1,125 —

32. Fair value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 32 € T AZ A AFEBEHRLAFE

Financial Instruments EFREEN

The Company did not have any financial instruments measured R-E—RAF=ZA=+—H AQAE
at fair value as at 31 March 2015. EARAFEEGTECEMIA o
Management has assessed that except as set out below, the BRTIXHEHIEN  EEBENBAEEZ
fair values of all financial assets and liabilities of the Group are FrEemEERBEZATEEREARE
reasonably approximate to their carrying values largely due to BEeERAE  TEEARNZTLATEEH
the short term maturities of these instruments. For fair value of MEIER o 552 B B 75 3R 3% BT 5 16 B% i 7] it
available-for-sale investments, please refer to note 16 to the HEREZATFBE R-_ZT—HF=A
financial statements. As at 31 March 2015, the fair values of =t+—H @@MIAZAFEAEDNBRER
financial instruments for which fair value are disclosed below E2ME FREERRBUARZETIAZA
which are classified based on their nature, characteristics and TEESEREBIER E  BREOT -

risks and the level of fair value hierarchy of these instruments.
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32. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 32.

Financial Instruments (continued)

Carrying
values
31 March
2015
—E—FHEF
=A
Hierarchy =+—HB 2
LB R E
HK$'000
FET
Financial assets FTAGT & R EAM Level 2
included in deposits ~ EURIE 2 EH=EE
and other TELEE
receivables (K$&E20) -
(note 20), ER BB

non-current portion

Level 2:  Fair value measurement using significant observable inputs

The fair value of non-current portion of deposits has been
calculation by discounting the expected future cash flows using
the risk-free rate (key input).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2014: nil) and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: nil).

EMIAZAFEERAFE
EEFHER @
Group
E
Fair values Carrying Fair
31 March values values

2015 31 March 2014 31 March 2014
—E-HF ZZZT—NmOF ZZT—NF

=R =A =A
=+-82 =f-H2 =f-82
AVEE EEE  ATEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT T

371 363

F_E: AVEEFERASATEEHAE

Rl ZIEMBE D 2 R FHEETRAER
BHER(E2HAE) MREHRKRSR

i -

FAN F-EBRF_EZRILLIFERR
FEEZFE(ZT-—WF:£) TRE
BANELE-"E(ZT—NF: &)
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 33. MERBETBRHERBEE

and Policies

The major financial instruments of the Group included trade
receivables, certain deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank deposits, trade payables, certain other payables and
accruals and an interest-bearing borrowing. The Group have
various other financial assets and liabilities such as amounts
due to Directors and/or available-for-sale investments.

The principal risk management objective of the Group and the
Company is to manage the risks associated to the unpredictability
of financial markets in a prudent manner. They are measured
by degree of such risks and their effects to the financial
performance and financial positions of the Group and the
Company.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group's and the Company’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken. The management seeks to
minimise the adverse effects of such risks to the Group and the
Company by closely monitoring individual exposure.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments are credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
The management reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. No
changes were made in the risk management objectives,
policies, processes and the methods used to measure the risks
during each of the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

AEEIZcRmIABERIERR
ETRIEREMEERE ReRRTHF
R AR - & T E A BN R MR
RENEFREE AKEHEHMERE
CREERBE WENEFZRERS
HAMHEHERE -

REBRARBZIEZAREEBERE
HERRSRTS A RAESRBZE
e FRBARRIZEREANEE R
ARBMBRRAMIBIRAZFZESE -

REBEFEE AEBERARREEERE
LEMTAEEZRER - EEERNEBR
ZOEEERRERR D ZERR YN EE
RARBZANEE -

EMIAMELAZIZARREERR
mBETER - MEERMINEER B
EEENIHEEENR LEBER 2R
B ABAEHHANT REBEE-_ZT—1
FR-ZB-NF=ZA=+—HILEFESR
FoRAREEBE  BE - i MERE
EAHEEE o
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is mainly arising from risk of default of
counterparties. The Group and the Company expose to
credit risk mainly from their financial assets with a
maximum exposure equal to their carrying amounts,
except for the Group's cash balances of approximately
HK$58,000 (2014: HK$118,000).

The objective of the Group and the Company is to
manage the adverse effect bring about by the risk of
potential default or delay in payments. It is the Group's
and the Company's policy that they trade only with
recognised and creditworthy counterparties and they are
subject to credit verification procedures. The
management monitors such exposures on an ongoing
basis mainly by control over credit limits and terms by
reference to their history of repayment and default.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. Save as
those disclosed in notes 15 and 19 to the financial
statements, there are no financial assets that are past
due but not impaired. The financial assets included
thereof relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet
all contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The
objective of the Group and the Company is, through prudent
treasury policy to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits
with a contingency plan for funding, to ensure the Group
and the Company has sufficient funding for operation
needs. The management manages liquidity risk by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

3. MERAREEHERBK &)

(@)

(b)

FEER
FERBREFEREAHFHEHZRE
o AEBEARRIZEERREE
REHERMEE - ASEAREZ&S
EEERAZSESCMEEZREME -
ME AN &£ B 2 3R & & & 4958000 % JT
(ZZ— V04 : 1180005 7T ) BR O ©

AEERARRZBRRERERE
HMEMN R REBREH Z THFE -
AEBENANRR 2 BRBEERER
ARGEERHZHFHETRS B
BERBBERARERRF BEEER
SERFHZERRENLERR - £
REEEREERERGFRHEESR
EAE N

EREAEERERERMELAZEE
BB 2 i —F 2L BB B R R
ST BE o BREA TSR R M RE15 R 19FR
WEEI  BEAHEBRREZ SR
BE HbzemEEMRTHITED
REERSZERFEER -

RBESER

mEBE L ERIEREREGE S AEN
BRIz AN BAEZAR - K
SERARRZ BREEBRE M
BRR #HERRREERRDES
bR - WREBSEERE - BEN
SEEARFARBENRSARME
BEFRE BEEEEBREEREA
HERRERENEBEREENE
BZAHBERAEHREERDE DM

Mt

/

=
Ep

0
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 33. MMERKEEERHERBE (&)
and Policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) KBHESER (R
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s RIPEEAR REBRAQRARES
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period RTINS E AR T
based on the contractual undiscounted payments is as BT ¢
follows:
Group
rEE
Total Total
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flows cash flows
on demand on demand
or less than or less than
12 months Total 12 months Total
REXR®  carrying BELK, carrying

LR+=@EA amount R+ ={8A amount
AN KRFTE IREE SAHARINTR REE

REREBAE wE HeREHE M

2015 2015 2014 2014

—E-FF —E-FHE —TNE —TF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FRT FET FHET

Trade payables FEBRX 9,952 9,952
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A E # & {+ 7038 &

other payables and accruals ~ JEztRIBZ SR A E 8,988 8,988

Due to Directors EBNESE 2B 585 535

Interest-bearing borrowing i EfEE — =

19,475 19,475
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 33. MR TR HERBE (&)
and Policies (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBESER (&)
Company
AT

Total Total

undiscounted undiscounted

cash flows cash flows

on demand on demand

or less than or less than
12 months Total 12 months Total
REX®  carrying BRELK, carrying

LPR+=EA amount 2R+ —{EA amount
A RFTE BREE SHRRTR BREE

REREARE BE HeRnEMR R
2015 2015 2014 2014
“E¥-hf Z“E-1F —T-mE —T-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET THET

Financial liahilities included st AR B AR 2

in investments in REZEMAR
subsidiaries (note 15) (HI#E15) 1,828 1,828
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A £ i JiE 1+ 7018 &
other payables and accruals — JEztZEB - &R E &
(note 24) GEZIY) 1,600 1,600
3,428 3,428
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (continued)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to its floating rate bank
deposits. The Group's income and operating cash flows
are largely independent of changes in market interest
rates.

Objective of the Group and the Company is to manage its
interest cost by a combination of fixed and variable rate
financial instruments. Currently, there is no interest rate
hedging policy. However, to monitor the interest rate
exposures, the management will consider hedging in
case of significant interest rate exposure.

Group

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risk is minimal as the Group does not have
any significant interest bearing financial assets/liabilities
and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Company
At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company'’s exposure to
interest rate risk is minimal as the Company does not
have any significant interest bearing financial assets/
liabilities and therefore no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Foreign currency risk

Group

The Group's trading transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB and Hong Kong
dollars. As the foreign currency risks generated from the
sales and cost of sales can be set off with each other, the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group was
not material. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to protect against the volatility associated
with foreign currency transactions and other financial
assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of
business. The majorities of the Group’s operating assets
are located in Mainland China and are denominated in
RMB.

3. MERREEHERBK &)

(©

(d)

) = 2 bz

AEERARBHEEEBRITERM
EERSRENXER - AEEZW
ARBER e REEARTK TG K

BHIHE -

AEERARBZ BEEEBEAE
ERFEN RS mh T A RE IR H A &
XS o 35 By b 48R 1l RE ) R SRR
AW RERMNERER  BEEESE
B - AR EAMEE R -

rEH
RZEBE-—RFRZZT—WOF=A=+
—B - HARAKREYEREFEMEX
FAREREEBE WAKENF
RREREN  FAMILE2INERED
1 e

ENAYT|
R-B-—RAFR_T—NF=A=+
— B ARARRLEHEREFMEKR
FFREeREEBE WARFNF
KREREN - Hil &2 8RED
1 e

S L B

rEE

AEEEER S  EWEERAEE
BUAARBRETAHEEM - AR
$HE R S B RN BT EE A 2 SN LR AT
EEE - Euit - SNE R E A K E
PR Z ZEEN - REBYEIADT
LSBT AHFAREEBHBEF 25
¥z o hEMeREERABMRIS
ZRE) c REBAMAOKEEEMR
REAM - WIAAREE -
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 33. MR TR HERBE (&)

and Policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) ShEE=E B (&)

Sensitivity analysis HEED T
The Group has no significant direct exposure to foreign HRAEBABIEERS BEN
currencies as most of the commercial transaction, assets BEDERANASERBZINGEEER
and liabilities are denominated in a currency as a 5| - AN B I A R E B AN
functional currency of each entry of the Company. & B o
Company F |
The Company has no exposure to significant risk resulting 2NN B A E R S B T R B i A HE
from change in foreign currency rates. BRER
In the opinion of the Directors, since the Company’s BERAE > ARAR A ZINE E B E
foreign currency risk is minimal, no sensitivity analysis is ik - A2 5 BURE DA o
presented.

34. Capital Management 3. SxEH

35.

The primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
management may make adjustments on the dividend policy or
capital structure policy in light of changes in conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2015 and
2014.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group and the Company had no significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2015 (2014: nil).

35.

EAERZTEARARARARBERERE
2E NABRREREREEFHEER
RIBARDE T ©

REHRBREEARE  TBET RS
ROR 2 8 AR D LR 1 SR R
HERAARERE - AEHBEYTE
ANREARE - BE-T—BER-F
—WE=AS+-ALLFE AAERY
B8 RERRRLEED -

BRAR

RZE-—AF=ZA=+—RH xEEK
ARRYBEAXAAB(ZFT—OF:
') o
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36.

37.

Event after the Reporting Period

On 1 April 2015, Dynamic Peak Limited (the “Offeror”), and
Century Technology Holding (PTC) Limited, Bakersfield Global
(PTC) Corporation and Greenford Company (PTC) Limited (the
“Vendors") entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“S&P
Agreement”). Pursuant to which, the Offeror conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Vendors conditionally agreed to
sell the aggregate of 294,276,619 shares of the Company (the
“Sale Shares”), for a total consideration of HK$79,454,687.13
(representing HK$0.27 per Sale Share). The completion of the
S&P Agreement took place on 29 April 2015. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 April
2015.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 22 June 2015.

36.

37.

BREHM®RER

RNZ=ZZF—AHFM A — B ' Dynamic Peak
Limited([ 2 #9 A 1) E2Century Technology
Holding (PTC) Limited - Bakersfield Global
(PTC) Corporation & Greenford Company
PTO) Lmited(TEHF NIV EEH=E ([ B
EHElD B ZEOABRGEMAEE
BEMBERAARUHRAELEA A A H
294276619 & 15 ([ #H E Bkt 1) - #BK(E
#579454, 687138 7T (HHER B RIHE KD
027%7T) - BEEMENR T —AFEMNAZ
THARZTK - F1E5F2HMARRBBHAZ
TE—REMA-+HABZAMH -

MEBRZZHE

PHRHFEN —_E—RFEA-_+_HES
e i RIREEM -
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